Licensing Committee
Monday, 24 September 2018
10.00 am at the

efg

Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton, SM1 1EA

To all members of the Licensing Committee:Chair:
Vice-Chair
Councillors:

Councillor Muhammad Sadiq
Councillor Jean Crossby
Eric Allen, Martina Allen, David Bartolucci, Moira Butt, Tim Crowley,
Tom Drummond, Vincent Galligan, Catherine Gray, Jillian Green,
Marlene Heron, Annie Moral, Jake Short and Chris Williams

This is a Council meeting held in public. Additional representations are at the invitation
of the Chair of the Committee. If you are a relevant organisation and you wish to
submit representations on a proposal contained within the reports to this agenda
please submit a request via Committee Services three working days before the
meeting date.
Members of the public also have a statutory entitlement to record meetings to which
they are admitted, subject to it not disrupting the meeting. They should record only
the meeting and not the audience. Anyone proposing to make a recording must
inform the Committee Services contact below before the meeting. Mobile devices can
interfere with the wireless microphones and induction loop, and if that is the case the
Chair may require that such devices are turned off.
PLEASE NOTE: Any decision taken at this meeting does not become definitive until
10am on the third working day after the meeting. Any four members of the Council
may notify the Chief Executive by then if they require a decision to be reviewed by the
appropriate committee at its next meeting. Please contact the Committee Services
representative shown on the front page for further information.

Niall Bolger
Chief Executive
Friday, 14 September 2018

Enquiries to: Cathy Hayward, Committee Services Officer Tel.: 020 8770 4990 |
Email: committeeservices@sutton.gov.uk

Copies available in large print upon request

AGENDA

1.

Welcome and Introductions

2.

Apologies

3.

Minutes of the Previous Meeting

1-4

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 18
June 2018.
4.

Declarations of Interest

5.

Licensing Policy Review

5 - 62

This report introduces a draft Statement of Licensing Policy under the
Licensing Act 2003 following a period of review, and invites Members to
consider the draft policy and approve it for public consultation as required by
the legislation.

6.

Review of the Gambling Policy

63 - 116

To consider the outcome of consultation on the draft revised Statement of
Licensing Policy under the Gambling Act 2005 and recommend the revised
Statement of Licensing Policy for 2019-22 to Council for approval.

7.

Animal Welfare - Changes to Licensing Legislation

8.

Any Urgent Business
brought forward at the direction of the Chair, who has approved the
reason for the urgency.

2

117 - 124

Page 1

Agenda Item 3
Licensing Committee
18 June 2018

LICENSING COMMITTEE
18 June 2018 at 10.00 am

MEMBERS:

Councillor Muhammad Sadiq (Chair), and Councillors
Martina Allen, David Bartolucci, Moira Butt, Vincent Galligan,
Catherine Gray, Jillian Green, Marlene Heron, Annie Moral,
Jake Short and Chris Williams

ABSENT

Councillor(s) Jean Crossby, Eric Allen, Tim Crowley and
Tom Drummond

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION
The Chair opened the meeting and welcomed attendees.
Nick Cloke, Lead Licensing Officer and David Kingstone, Licensing
and Environmental Compliance Team Leader provided an overview the of the Licensing
Committee.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATION OF SUBSTITUTES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Eric Allen, Tom Drummond, Jean
Crossby and Tim Crowley, no substitutes were declared

3. MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 19 March 2018 were approved as a correct record,
and signed by Councillor Heron who had been in attendance.

4. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
There were no declarations of interest.

5. LICENSING POLICY REVIEW
David Kingstone, Licensing and Environmental Compliance Team Leader, presented the
report.
In response to member questions, the Licensing and Environmental Compliance Team
Leader clarified that all known residents’ associations would be written to informing them
of the consultation period and how they might respond to the Statement of Licensing
Policy consultation.

1

Agenda Item 3

Page 2
Licensing Committee
18 June 2018

Members expressed their concerns regarding the timing of the consultation period, stating
that the consultation period currently planned would fall during the summer holiday period
and that the time before the draft goes out to consultation is too short for Councillors to
comment on the draft statement.
Councillors agreed that delaying the start of the consultation would allow members more
time to provide comments to the draft policy in advance of the consultation period.
Members discussed the location and extent of the current Cumulative Impact Zone (CIZ),
and noted the impact of the CIZ in attracting business to the Sutton borough. Councillors
agreed that concerns linked to the CIZs were often related to outlets which provide single
units or super strength items for off site sales and not all venues within the CIZ.
Councillors asked if it would possible to include restrictions to a CIZ. In response, Nick
Cloke, Lead Licensing officer, confirmed that a CIZ can be set with restrictions which could
include: limiting to particular times of day, applied to only on site or only off site sales.
Each CIZ within the borough can have its own restrictions and changes could be made to
the geographical area of current CIZs, where evidence supports this.
An amendment to the recommendations was motioned by Councillor Sadiq and seconded
by Councillor Butt that “ The draft Statement of Licensing Policy be presented to the
September meeting of the Licensing Committee, at this time the Committee be requested
to agree the process and timescale for reviewing the Statement of Licensing Policy”
Councillor Galligan left the meeting prior to the vote.

RESOLVED: that the draft Statement of Licensing Policy be presented to the September
meeting of the Licensing Committee, at this time the Committee be requested to agree the
process and timescale for reviewing the Statement of Licensing Policy”

6. GAMBLING POLICY REVIEW
The report was presented by Nick Cloke, Lead Licensing Officer.
Councillors asked for clarification about the inclusion of gaming machine stakes and prizes
within the draft Statement of Licensing Policy and Principles under the Gambling act 2005.
The Lead Licensing officer responded that gaming machines stakes and prizes are
contained within Regulations made under the primary Licensing Legislation and therefore
are not included in the Statement of Licensing Policy and Principles under the Gambling
Act 2005. The details of stakes and prizes for categories of gaming machines can be
found on the Councils website
RESOLVED: that the draft Statement of Licensing Policy and Principles under the
Gambling Act 2005 be released for consultation in accordance with the process set
out at paragraphs 5.4 - 5.8 of the report.

2

Page 3

Agenda Item 3
Licensing Committee
18 June 2018

7. ANY URGENT BUSINESS,
There was no urgent business.

The meeting ended at 12.20pm
Chair:
Date:

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

Report to:

Licensing Committee

Report title:

Licensing Policy Review (Licensing Act 2003)

Report from:

Mary Morrissey - Strategic Director, Environment, Housing &
Regeneration

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:

Councillor Muhammad Sadiq

Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

David Kingstone, Team Leader Licensing & Environmental
Compliance, 020 8770 5162 / 0734 2055 767
Nick Cloke, Licensing Lead Officer, 020 8770 5622 / 020 8547 5600
ext. 4366

Corporate Plan
Priorities:
Open/Exempt:

●
●

Date:

24 September 2018

Making Informed Choices
Keeping People Safe

Open

Signed:

Date:

11 September 2018

1.

Summary

1.1

This report introduces a draft Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003
following a period of review, and invites Members to consider the draft policy and approve it for
public consultation as required by the legislation.

2.

Recommendations
The Licensing Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Approve the draft Statement of Licensing Policy and agree the process of consultation on this
policy and the Cumulative Impact Assessment Report.

Agenda Item 5

Page 6

3.

Background

3.1

The Council, in its capacity as Licensing Authority, is required under the Licensing Act 2003 to
approve and publish a Statement of Licensing Policy [the Policy], which must be reviewed a
minimum of every 5 years.

3.2

The Licensing Policy sets out the arrangements the Licensing Authority will normally follow in
carrying out its functions under the Licensing Act 2003, particularly when making decisions on
licence applications made in respect of Premises Licences, Club Premises Certificates,
Personal Licences and Temporary Event Notices.

3.3

In June 2018, the Committee resolved that a draft Statement of Licensing Policy be brought to
this committee for consideration ahead of a period of public consultation. A draft Statement of
Licensing Policy was shared with members at the start of September, and is also attached at
Appendix A.

4.

Issues

4.1

The current Licensing Policy was approved in March 2014 and must therefore be reviewed, with
a new Policy published by March 2019.

4.2

The London Borough of Sutton’s current Policy contains a Special Policy on Cumulative Impact
(Saturation Policy) and the Licensing Committee commenced a review of that area of the Policy
in 2016. Following a process of data collection and analysis at subsequent committee meetings,
the Committee resolved in December 2017 to propose two areas to which a Special Policy on
Cumulative Impact would apply, subject to consultation.

4.3

Following a change in the approach to Cumulative Impact introduced through section 141 of the
Policing and Crime Act 2018 in April, a new document called a Cumulative Impact Assessment
has been prepared. The document incorporates the findings of the review of Cumulative Impact
Assessment carried out in 2016/17. The draft Cumulative Impact Assessment is published
separately but in support of the Statement of Licensing Policy and a copy is given at
Appendix B.

5.

Options Considered
Draft Policy

5.1

The draft Statement of Licensing Policy has been drafted in accordance with the requirements
of the Secretary of State's Guidance on the Licensing Act 2003 (known as s182 Guidance) and
whilst overhauled many of the policies contained therein have not been significantly amended.

5.2

Whilst the contents of the draft Licensing Policy is largely similar to those going before, officers
have taken the opportunity to revise the layout. Some additions have been made in
consideration of latest Government and Home Office advice, and have also taken into account
issues and concerns that have arisen over the life of the current policy.

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

5.3

The most significant change is in relation to the Cumulative Impact Policy, now known as a
Cumulative Impact Assessment this document will sit separately to the Statement of Licensing
Policy.

5.4

Other proposed revisions include further stipulations; in relation to the Protection of Children
from Harm licensing objectives, and to the detail and supporting information the Licensing
Authority expect to see contained within operating schedules.

5.5

The Committee is invited to note the draft Statement of Licensing Policy and are invited to
identify any areas that may require amendment ahead of its publication for consultation.
Consultation

5.6

The Licensing Authority is obliged to consult on any reviews it makes of its Statement of
Licensing Policy, and in doing so is required to consult with:
● The Chief Officer of Police
● The Fire and Rescue Authority
● The Director of Public Health
● Persons / bodies representative of local holders of premises licences
● Persons / bodies representative of local holders of club premises certificates
● Persons / bodies representative of local holders of personal licences
● Persons / bodies representative of businesses and residents in its area.

5.7

Consultation can however be extended to whatever extent is deemed appropriate in the
circumstances and it is it is intended that the draft Policy will be made generally available on the
Council's website. Electronic or printed copies of the draft Policy will be made available to all
those who request it.

5.8

As with other policy consultations, existing licence holders and the Responsible Authorities will
be consulted in writing, advising them that the Policy is under review and directing their attention
to its location on the website.

5.9

In addition, to ensure wider knowledge of the consultation, it is further proposed that
representatives of resident associations, faith groups and other relevant bodies will also be
similarly notified.
Timescale

5.10 It is proposed that the draft Statement of Licensing Policy, subject to any amendments agreed
at this meeting, and together with the Cumulative Impact Assessment is published for
consultation 1 October for a period of 8 weeks (closing on 25 November).
5.11 A report detailing responses to the consultation will be brought to the December meeting of the
Licensing Committee, together with recommendations for amendment to the Policy arising from
those responses. Members will be invited to consider the responses, make such amendments

Agenda Item 5

Page 8

as appropriate to the Policy and approve final Statement of Licensing Policy for approval at the
January meeting of Council and publication on 1 February 2019.
6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

Consultation on Policy incurs financial and time implications; these can be met from existing
resource and budget.
Legal

6.2

Section 122 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 amended section 5 of the
Licensing Act 2003, so that the 3 year period of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy was
extended to 5 years, when it needs to be reviewed and re-published.

6.3

Section 141 of the Policing and Crime Act 2017 amended section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 to
include the requirement for Cumulative Impact assessments (CIAs) instead of the adoption of
Cumulative Impact Zone and Policies, as part of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy.
Section 5 (a) (1) of the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended) states:
“A licensing authority may publish a document (“a cumulative impact assessment”) stating that
the licensing authority considers that the number of relevant authorisations in respect of
premises in one or more parts of its area described in the assessment is such that it is likely
that it would be inconsistent with the authority's duty under section 4(1) to grant any further
relevant authorisations in respect of premises in that part or those parts.”.

6.4

Before introducing a Cumulative Impact Assessment, the Licensing Authority is required to
undertake a formal public consultation processes and a CIA can only be introduced where it is
supported by evidence. Paragraphs 14.29 to 14.33 of the Home Office Guidance under section
182 of the Licensing Act 2003 sets out what evidence and other matters the Authority may wish
to consider.

6.5

Other legislative amendments have taken place to licensing legislation that mean that changes
have to be made to the Council’s Statement of Licensing policy. These arise from changes
made by the Immigration Act 2016 (Schedule 4), the Police Reform and Social Responsibility
Act 2011, and the Policing and Crime Act 2017 for example.

Page 9

7.

Agenda Item 5

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Draft Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003

B

Draft Cumulative Impact Assessment Report

Background documents
Secretary of State - Guidance on the Licensing Act 2003 (s182 Guidance) (Home Office)

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date:11 September 2018

Finance

No

N/A

Legal

Yes

Guy Bishop

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

No

Not required at this stage

Consultation with other officers

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 11

Agenda Item 5
Appendix A

LICENSING ACT 2003
STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY
2019-2024

Approved on:
Published on:
In effect from:

## December 2018
## December 2018
## January 2019

This Statement of Licensing Policy of the London Borough of Sutton, the relevant
Licensing Authority, was prepared under Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 after
having regard to all relevant government guidance. The policy and its publication
were approved by the full Council on <INSERT DATE>.

Version 1.2 DRAFT
Last updated: Wednesday 29 August 2018

Agenda Item 5

Page 12

This page has been left blank

2

Page 13

Agenda Item 5

CONTENTS
PAGE
GLOSSARY

4

FOREWARD

7

OVERVIEW

8

INTRODUCTION

12

PART A – MATTERS OF GENERAL POLICY

19

PART B – POLICY ON THE PROMOTION OF THE LICENSING
OBJECTIVES

26

APPENDIX 1 – CONTACT DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE
AUTHORITIES
APPENDIX 2 – DELEGATION OF LICENSING DECISIONS
APPENDIX 3 – SPECIAL POLICY ON CUMULATIVE IMPACT

43
45
47

3

Agenda Item 5

Page 14

GLOSSARY
The Council

The London Borough of Sutton

The Licensing
Authority

The capacity in which the Council acts when performing its
roles and duties set out in the Licensing Act 2003. This
capacity is delegated to officers in certain situations and
circumstances detailed in the Policy.

The Act

The Licensing Act 2003 and all Regulations made thereunder.

Secretary of
State’s Guidance

The Guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Digital
Culture, Media and Sport under section 182 of the Licensing
Act 2003

Other person

Any persons wishing to make representations on an
application or to apply for or make representations on a review,
who may include persons who live, work or visit the licensing
authority's area.

A member of the
relevant
licensing
authority

Any elected member of the Council.

Cumulative
Impact Policy

A special policy in which the Licensing Authority sets out that
the number of premises within a certain area or areas is such
that their cumulative impact (as opposed to the impact of any
particular one premises) adversely affects the promotion of the
licensing objectives.

Relevant
representation

The Licensing Authority may only consider relevant
representations (objections) in determining applications.
Relevant Representations are defined in the Act as being
those that:
● are about the likely effect of the grant of the premises
licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives
● are made by any other person or responsible authority
within the prescribed time period following an application
● are not frivolous or vexatious (in the opinion of the
Licensing Authority)

Frivolous
representations

Those based on matters of limited seriousness, where the
issues complained of are about a very minor nature and any
action required would be disproportionate.

Vexatious
representations

Would be those that arise out of disputes between parties and
generally have little or no substance.

4

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

Designated
Premises
Supervisor
(DPS)

A person specified on the licence as the supervisor of the
premises licensed for the sale of alcohol. The DPS must hold a
personal licence.

Personal Licence

A licence granted by a Licensing Authority to an individual,
authorising that individual to sell, or authorise the sales of,
alcohol.

Operating
schedule

The part of an application form in which the applicant sets out
their proposed activities, the times which they wish to operate
and the steps they propose to promote the licensing
objectives.

Licensable
activities

Activities for which authorisation is required under the Act:
● the sale by retail of alcohol,
● the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the
order of, a member of the club,
● the provision of regulated entertainment, and
● the provision of late night refreshment.

Regulated
entertainment

The provision of regulated entertainment is defined as any of
the following activities that takes place in the presence of an
audience for the entertainment of that audience and are
provided with a view to profit:
●

Boxing or wrestling including mixed martial arts (this
does not include Greco-Roman or Freestyle wrestling)
● An exhibition of a film (this does not include live feed
television i.e. sporting events)
● Adult entertainment (for example lap-dancing)
● Playing of recorded music
○ Between 11pm and 8am
○ At any time when the audience numbers are over
500 people
● Unamplified live music
○ Between 11pm and 8am
●

Amplified live music (including karaoke):
○ Between 11pm and 8am
○ At any time when the audience numbers are over
500 people

●

Performance of dance
○ Between 11pm and 8am
○ At any time when the audience numbers are over
500 people

5

Page 16

Agenda Item 5

●

Performance of a play
○ Between 11pm and 8am
○ At any time when the audience numbers are over
500 people

●

Indoor Sporting Events
○ Between 11pm and 8am
○ At any time when the audience numbers are over
1000 people
Entertainment of a similar description to that falling
within the performance of live music, playing of recorded
music or performance of dance

●

Responsible
Authority

Means the:
● the Chief Officer of Police
● the Fire Authority
● the Public Health authority
● the Enforcing Authority within the meaning given by
section 18 of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974,
● the Local Planning Authority within the meaning given by
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
● the Local Authority by which statutory functions are
exercisable in relation to minimising or preventing the risk
of pollution of the environment or of harm to human health,
● a body which—
● represents those who, in relation to any such area, are
responsible for, or interested in, matters relating to the
protection of children from harm, and
● is recognised by the licensing authority for that area for
the purposes of this section as being competent to
advise it on such matters,
● the relevant licensing authority and any other licensing
authority in whose area part of the premises is situated
● the Primary Care Trust or Local Health Board for any area
in which the premises are situated
● the Trading Standards Authority,
● any Licensing Authority (other than the relevant licensing
authority) in whose area part of the premises is situated,
● in relation to a vessel:
● a Navigation Authority (within the meaning of section
221(1) of the Water Resources Act 1991) having
functions in relation to the waters where the vessel is
usually moored or berthed or any waters where it is,
or is proposed to be, navigated at a time when it is
used for licensable activities,
● the Environment Agency,
● the British Waterways Board, or
● the Secretary of State,

6

Page 17

Agenda Item 5

INTRODUCTION
1. The London Borough of Sutton is committed to the delivery of sustainable
economic growth throughout the Borough. The Council believes that our Town
and District Centres are vital to generating a thriving local economy and have the
opportunity to bring with them both economic and social benefits.
2. Our Town Centres are evolving and Sutton is looking to the future to ensure the
Borough can think ahead and position itself to maximise benefit from these
changes. This will include strengthening our leisure offer by creating a lively
attractive night time economy that is fully inclusive, encourages families back into
the high street in the evening and most importantly is safe.
3. Our vision is therefore for Sutton to have a vibrant and diverse night time
economy which will include a wide choice of high quality and well managed
entertainment and cultural venues in our town and district centres that are valued
by those who live, work and visit the Borough.
4. The Council has extensive experience in regulating entertainment with Sutton
currently home to over 400 licensed premises including pubs, bars, wine bars,
restaurants, theatres and nightclubs. Many other premises including cultural
venues and shops are also licensed.
5. This policy identifies the importance of widening the overall offer of licensed
premises in the Borough and the associated impact on the quality of life and
protection of our local residents. It also takes into consideration the development
of a greater diversity in the types of entertainment and cultural activity on offer for
all age groups. By doing this it furthers the objectives of prevention of crime and
disorder and public nuisance.
6. The Council understands the detrimental effect that a drink dominated offer can
have on the high street, its residents and visitors and wishes to discourage the
effects of excessive drinking. In response to this the Council are encouraging
initiatives that create a positive change in Sutton’s night time economy including
the provision of additional seating in premises which serve alcohol. This provides
an opportunity for people to sit and enjoy a drink and order food by table service,
in place of open bar space which caters for high volume vertical drinking. As such
this policy will actively promote the implementation of the licensing objectives.
7. Through this Policy the Council aims to secure the safety and amenity of
residential and business communities whilst ensuring a sustainable entertainment
and cultural industry. To achieve this we must consider the needs of residents
and businesses for a safe and healthy environment to live and work in. The
Council recognises the importance of well-managed entertainment premises to
the local economy, ambience and culture of the Borough and is committed to
partnership working with the licensing trade, local businesses, the Successful
Sutton Business Improvement District, residents and the responsible authorities.

7

Agenda Item 5

Page 18

8. Alcohol-related illness or injury accounts for 180,000 hospital admissions per
year. The total annual healthcare cost related to alcohol misuse are in excess of
£1.7 billion per year with the bulk of this cost borne by the National Health
Service. Alcohol-related deaths have more than doubled since 1979, with more
people dying at a younger age.
9. Alcohol is associated with a wide range of criminal offences including drink
driving, being drunk and disorderly, criminal damage, assault and domestic
violence. In young people alcohol is associated with anti-social behaviour and
teenage conceptions. The picture of risky drinking behaviour is complex.
Information from synthetic estimates on binge drinking suggests a link with
deprivation in Sutton. Patterns of health services use suggests that higher risk
drinking is more widespread – occurring in both deprived and affluent areas.
10. The number of crimes in which alcohol is a factor is higher in London that other
parts of the England and Wales. It is estimated that up to 80 per cent of weekend
arrests are alcohol-related and just over half of all violent crime is committed
while drunk.
11. London Ambulance data shows that Sutton town centre is a hotspot for alcohol
related violence. This mostly occurs on Friday and Saturday evenings into the
early hours. Lower level alcohol related disorder, particularly linked to groups of
youths, remains the key concern of residents interviewed in the borough wide
SENSOR survey.
12. Clusters of particular types of licensed premises in Sutton’s Town and District
Centres can lead to an accumulation of issues culminating in increased crime
and disorder, anti-social behaviour and public nuisance. Special policies will be
considered to address these.
13. As the Licensing Authority, the Council is required to approve and publish a
Statement of Licensing Policy, setting out how it will promote the statutory
licensing objectives as set out in the Licensing Act 2003. It provides the policy
framework for councillors on the Licensing Sub-Committee that makes decisions
on licence applications in respect of Premises Licences, Club Premises
Certificates, Personal Licences and Temporary Event Notices.
14. The decisions taken by the Council’s Licensing Sub-Committee, framed and
guided by this Statement of Licensing Policy aim to promote a key set of licensing
objectives and prevent problems with the evening and night time economy that
may otherwise have a direct impact on people’s lives and well-being. These
same problems also put a strain on essential public services, including the police,
ambulance services and Accident and Emergency (A&E) departments.
15. In exercising its powers under the Licensing Act 2003, the Licensing Authority will
be mindful of the concerns set out above but it acknowledges that there are
limitations on its powers. A fair balance must be struck between all the

8

Page 19

Agenda Item 5

stakeholders involved; including, licensees, businesses holders, visitors and
residents. The Council also recognises that, as well as its licensing controls and
directly related enforcement activities, planning policies, late night transport
provision, street cleaning, policing and the provision of emergency health
services all contribute to achieving this balance between those going out at night
and others who want a good night’s sleep or to walk through a clean town centre
first thing in the morning.
16. The Council believes that as well as licensing, national schemes such as Best
Bar None, Behave or be Banned, Purple Flag, Pubwatch and Business
Improvement Districts have shown that a thriving and growing evening and night
time economy can operate when excessive drinking is tackled consistently and
robustly by local businesses, the police and the Council working together.
17. In summary therefore, the Council expects and encourages those engaged in
operating licensed premises in the Town and District Centres and, indeed, across
the whole of the Borough to carefully examine how they operate and how what
they do may affect residents and businesses. In cases where Licensees do not
act reasonably the Council will exercise robust enforcement controls to ensure
that Sutton is an environment which is safe, and feels safe, for all communities.
18. This Statement of Licensing Policy has been produced following the provisions of
the 2003 Act and the Guidance issued under section 182 of the 2003 Act
published in April 2018.

9

Agenda Item 5

Page 20

POLICY, PRINCIPLES, PURPOSE AND SCOPE
19. The Council has wide experience in regulating entertainment and it recognises
that licensed entertainment in the borough contributes to its appeal to both
residents and visitors as a vibrant place to live and as a destination. The
entertainment industry brings cultural and financial benefits to the borough but
the Council believes that good management of this vibrant industry and the street
environment within which it operates is essential to the continued success of the
borough in attracting a wide range of people who want to come here to work, to
visit and to live.
20. There can be a potential conflict between the interests of different parts of the
entertainment industry in terms of their ‘offer’ to potential customers and in the
behaviour and activities of those customers. The Council’s role as a Licensing
Authority is the principle means by which, working in partnership with the Police
and other bodies, it can manage the evening and night-time economy. Other
legislative processes also have a bearing on the management of the evening and
night-time economy, most notably planning where proposals for new leisure
facilities or extended hours for existing facilities are controlled by the need for
planning permission.
21. The Act requires that the Authority must review and publish a policy at least once
every five years but it can review this whenever it feels appropriate. The previous
Policy published in 2014 contained a Special Policy on Cumulative Impact. The
Licensing Committee commenced a review of the Special Policy in 2016.
Following a process of data collection and analysis it was established the 2014
Policy would require a full review and in light of the full review process requiring
public consultation, the Council determined to delay consultation on a Special
Policy until the whole Policy review was commenced. This Statement of
Licensing Policy is the result of that review, and together with the Special Policy
is subject to public consultation.
22. The consultation process involving a wide range of authorities, organisations,
representatives and the general public during a consultation period between
<INSERT DATES>. The Council consulted specifically with:
●
●
●
●
●
●

The Metropolitan Police
The Council’s Community Safety Team
London Fire Brigade
Residents Associations
Representatives of licensees
Representatives of local business including Successful Sutton and
Opportunity Sutton
● The Council’s Public Health Team
● Other Responsible Authorities

10

Page 21

Agenda Item 5

23. This policy will remain in force until <INSERT DATES>. However, within this
period, the Policy or part of the Policy may be subject to review. The Licensing
Authority will consult on any review with the organisations listed in paragraph 3
above, and take into consideration any comments they may have to make
regarding the continued suitability of the Policy to promote the Licensing
Objectives.
24. This policy was agreed by Council at its meeting on <INSERT DATES>, and
supersedes all other versions of the Policy.

11

Page 22

Agenda Item 5

PROMOTION OF THE LICENSING OBJECTIVES
25. The Council is responsible for licensing a range of activities related to the sale
and supply of alcohol, the provision of regulated entertainment and late night
refreshments. Licensing of these activities is through four different types of
authorisations or permissions.
●
●
●
●

Premises license
Club premises certificate
Temporary event notice
Personal licence

26. In carrying out its functions under the Act, the Licensing Authority has a duty to
promote the following licensing objectives:
●
●
●
●

the prevention of crime and disorder
public safety
the prevention of public nuisance
the protection of children from harm

27. The Licensing Authority must have regard to these objectives in carrying out its
functions under the Licensing Act 2003 and having regard to current guidance
issued by the Secretary of State, as they are reflected in its statement of licensing
policy. The guidance makes it clear that each licensing objective is of equal
importance and the Licensing Authority is expected to consider their promotion as
of ‘paramount importance’. It will always consider the circumstances and merits
of each application and it may make exceptions to its policy approach where it is
appropriate to do so in order to promote the licensing objectives and it will give its
reasons for doing so.
28. As well as the statutory objectives, the Act and guidance support a number of
other key aims and purposes linked to the licensable activities that are
considered to be vitally important. They include:
● protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour
and noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises
● giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to
effectively manage and police the night-time economy
● recognising the important role that pubs and other licensed premises play
in our communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business,
encouraging innovation and supporting responsible premises
● providing a regulatory framework for alcohol that reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers them to make and enforce decisions about
the most responsible licensing strategies for their local area, and
● encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and
giving local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing
decisions that may impact on them.

12

Page 23

Agenda Item 5

29. The Council must set out how it will promote the statutory objectives and support
the other key aims and purposes in a Statement of Policy and this must strike a
reasonable balance between different and sometimes competing aims, including
widening the choice and appeal of licensed premises and the development of
culture and protection of local residents.
30. The Council gives a high priority to the development of greater diversity in the
types of entertainment and cultural activity on offer and the age groups attracted
to them and also to its aims of encouraging greater mixed-use development in
the town centre. By doing this, it furthers the licensing objectives of the
prevention of crime and disorder and public nuisance.
31. The Council wishes to discourage drunkenness and the resulting anti-social
behaviour and nuisance to residents and to other visitors to the borough. A key
feature of its approach is therefore to use its influence to encourage a change in
the composition of the borough’s night-time economy so it is more widely based
and diverse and less dominated by large alcohol-led premises.
32. The Council, acting as the Licensing Authority, has discretion on whether to grant
applications for licenses and to impose conditions on granting and renewing
licenses, only when representations relevant to the licensing objectives are made
by “responsible authorities” or “other persons” (see Glossary). Where no
relevant representations are received, it is the duty of the Licensing
Authority to grant a licence, subject to conditions consistent with the
operating schedule and the mandatory conditions under the Licensing Act
2003.
33. This Statement of Licensing Policy generally reflects the Council’s understanding
of the views and concerns of the responsible authorities at the time it was
revised. However, those authorities are not bound by the Statement and can
make any representations if they are concerned over the effect of the grant of any
application on the licensing objectives.
34. This Statement does not undermine the right of any individual to apply under the
terms of the Act for a variety of permissions, and have any such application
considered on its merits, nor does it override the right of any person to make
representations on an application or to seek a review of a licence or certificate,
where provision exists for them to do so.
35. The Licensing Authority recognises that its powers under the Act are only one
means by which the licensing objectives may be promoted. As such, the Authority
also recognises that the Act must not be regarded as the only method for
addressing and correcting problems or concerns that may arise from the use of
premises for licensable activities.
36. In making decisions on licence applications, the Authority will take into
consideration the availability of other powers and responsibilities exercised by the

13

Agenda Item 5

Page 24

wider Council, the Police and other designated authorities whilst ensuring that the
final decision is based upon the promotion of the licensing objectives.
37. It is recognised that the control of nuisance and anti-social behaviour by
individuals once they are away from a licensed premises is beyond the direct
control of licence holder. However, the Authority recognises that the control of
licensing law forms part of a holistic approach to the management of the
Borough’s busy evening and night-time economy.

14

Page 25

Agenda Item 5

OTHER RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND LEGISLATION
38. This revised Statement of Licensing Policy recognises and has given full regard
to other relevant Council and partnership strategies and initiatives that help to
promote the licensing objectives. This includes measures to tackle anti-social
behaviour (having regard to the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act
2014), noise and degradation of the street environment, problems often
associated with late-night entertainment. Examples include:
● Business Improvement District (BID) – called Successful Sutton has
been set up in Sutton town centre to ensure that local businesses
including pubs and clubs pay a levy that is used to fund projects to
enhance the appearance of the area, as well as promoting events to
increase footfall.
● Public Space Protection Orders the borough have 65 such orders in
place that provide extra enforcement powers for the police to resolve
public space drinking issues.
39. The Council recognises the links between excessive alcohol consumption and
poor health. The Licensing policy and regime is a key element of a wider package
of initiatives to tackle alcohol harm reduction delivered through the Sutton
Multi-Agency Alcohol Harm Reduction strategy and contributing to the Borough’s
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. Within the context of the Licensing
Objectives, Planning has a key role to support these wider strategies. The
Council recognises the public health impacts of alcohol use and will ensure they
are taken into account when promoting the licensing objectives.
40. This revised Statement of Policy places a greater emphasis on the safeguarding
and protection of children following the results of the consultation exercise and a
number of high profile related national inquiries. This is highlighted in more detail
under Part B: LICENCING OBJECTIVE - THE PROTECTION OF CHILDREN
FROM HARM.
41. The Council has adopted a variety of strategies to protect and promote a Safer,
Fairer, and Greener Borough. These include the Opportunity Sutton programme
and strategies for Crime and Disorder Reduction and Alcohol Harm Reduction.
The Council has taken initiatives to prevent anti-social behaviour, noise and
degradation of the street environment. These problems are often associated with,
but not limited to, late night entertainment. A combination of licensing, planning
and other powers along with effective management of the street environment is
required to tackle these problems. This Licensing Policy will contribute to those
overarching aims expressed in the Local Development Plan, Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy and Community Safety Strategy and specifically the
underpinning Opportunity Sutton Programme and Multi-Agency Alcohol Harm
Reduction Strategy. Through the promotion of the licensing objectives the policy
will contribute to improving the quality of life for residents and businesses and
reduce alcohol related hospital admissions.

15

Agenda Item 5

Page 26

42. Many other statutory requirements apply to licensed premises, such as fire
safety, planning, building control, public health, food hygiene and trading
standards. The Council must also have specific regard to its duties under Section
17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, to prevent crime and disorder. The
Council is committed to avoiding duplication with other regulatory regimes as far
as possible so will only apply conditions to premises licenses if they are
considered appropriate to promote the licensing objectives and are not
required under other legislation.

FAIR AND EQUITABLE TREATMENT
43. Nothing in this statement of policy will:
a. Undermine the rights of any person to have his/her application considered
on its merits (subject to any limitations and restrictions imposed within this
Statement) and in accordance with the rules of natural justice and the
European Convention on Human Rights.
b. Negate the right of any person to make representations regarding any
application, or to seek a review of any licence, and for those
representations to be properly considered in accordance with the rules of
natural justice and the European Convention on Human Rights.

ADVICE
44. Officers from the Authority are available to give advice to any person on technical
matters of the legislation, including, but not exclusively, whether or not a licence,
certificate or other authorisation is required and the procedures for making
representations or calling for review of authorisations.
45. It should however be noted that the Authority must at all times remain impartial in
the advice it provides, and as such officers will be unable to give advice on
matters relating to business operation, nor advise on the likely success or
otherwise of any application.
46. The Authority recognises its role as a Responsible Authority, and the inherent
duties and responsibilities that this role presents. In carrying out this function,
officers shall ensure that any advice given to applicants strictly relates to
procedural or technical issues. Advice given by the Authority will not constitute
guidance and shall be reflective of the dual role performed by the Authority.
47. Anyone requiring advice on the licensing process as outlined above should
contact:
London Borough of Sutton, Licensing Team, 24 Denmark Road,
Carshalton, SM5 2JG.
Telephone: 020 8773 5000
E-mail: licensing@sutton.gov.uk Website: www.sutton.gov.uk
16

Page 27

Agenda Item 5

PART A – MATTERS OF GENERAL POLICY
THE APPLICATION OF LICENSING CONTROLS
48. The Licensing Authority only has discretion on whether to grant applications for
new premises licences or variations to licences and to impose conditions on
granting licences, if representations relevant to the licensing objectives are made
by “interested parties” or by “responsible authorities” in due time. Otherwise, it
must grant all applications. Therefore, the Authority will only consider and
apply its policies when such relevant representations have been made.
49. In determining applications, the Authority will take account of the need to balance
relevant representations made by local residents against the benefits to the
community at large and the need to avoid the imposition of conditions that are
unduly and unnecessarily restrictive. The desirability of promoting artistic and
cultural events is also an important consideration.

THE APPLICATION OF CONDITIONS
50. The Licensing Authority encourages licence holders, businesses, local residents,
the Police and other bodies to work in partnership to ensure that the licensing
objectives are promoted.
51. It is anticipated that prior to making any application under the Act, applicants will
have undertaken a full risk assessment of the impact of their activities on the
licensing objectives. Applicants are expected to submit a detailed operating
schedule setting out the steps they intend to take to promote the licensing
objectives. In particular, applicants are encouraged to discuss their operating
schedules with relevant Responsible Authorities in advance of making an
application.
52. Where licences are granted the Authority will, where appropriate and where
empowered to do so, attach such conditions, tailored to the individual
characteristics and style of the premises, as it deems appropriate to promote the
licensing objectives.
53. Conditions may be drawn from the guidance provided in Part B of this policy, or
may be drawn up in response to particular features of the application. Applicants
are encouraged to volunteer in their operating schedule such conditions they
consider pertinent to their activities
54. The Authority will only apply conditions to authorisations that focus upon matters
within the control of the licence holder or other relevant person and will not, as far
as is reasonably practicable, impose any conditions which duplicate the
requirements of existing regulatory regimes’.

17

Agenda Item 5

Page 28

55. Stricter conditions with regard to noise control may be applied in areas with a
denser concentration of residential accommodation, in order to ensure the
promotion of the licensing objective relating to the prevention of public nuisance.
56. Where relevant representations are made, and not subsequently withdrawn
following negotiation, a Licensing Sub-Committee hearing will be held. As part of
the decision making process at a Sub-Committee hearing, the Authority may
apply conditions to any granted licence as are appropriate to promote the
licensing objectives.
57. Where no relevant representations are made in respect of an application, the
Authority will grant the licence or certificate subject to conditions consistent with
the operating schedule being applied to the granted licence together with any
relevant mandatory conditions specified in the Act.

MAKING APPLICATIONS
58. All applications must be made in writing, using forms prescribed by regulations.
The Authority also accepts applications made online using the portal provided for
this purpose on the Council’s website and through the Gov.UK application portal,
and actively encourages the submission of certain applications through the online
portal.
59. Advice is available from Licensing Officers, and the Council’s website, on the
process of making applications. [See paragraph 46 for contact details of the
Licensing Team].
60. Applications for new or variations to, premises licences and club premises
certificates must also be submitted to the Responsible Authorities. The duty to
submit a copy of the application to each authority rests with the applicant, except
in cases where an application is made entirely online, in which case the Licensing
Authority will notify the Responsible Authorities on the applicant’s behalf.
61. The Act sets out in general terms the role of ‘Responsible Authorities’, and
Appendix 1 of this policy provides contact details for the responsible authorities
in respect of applications to be made to the Licensing Authority.

NOTIFICATION OF APPLICATIONS
62. The Council will ensure that the applicant complies with the consultation and
advertising requirements of the Act and Regulations made under it. The applicant
is required to advertise an application by means of a notice, clearly visible from
outside the premises, for a specified period and by advertising in a local
newspaper or other suitable borough wide publication. A copy of the application
is posted on the Council's web-site for the duration of the consultation period.
63. In the case of applications for larger premises, such as open air venues
applicants are encouraged to ensure that an adequate number of notices are

18

Page 29

Agenda Item 5

displayed around the area, especially adjacent to entrances, above and beyond
the statutory minimum. Licensing Officers carry out checks to ensure notices are
displayed.

COMMENTING ON APPLICATIONS (MAKING REPRESENTATIONS)
64. The Authority recognises that the Act, and the Secretary of State’s Guidance,
specifies what matters it may take into consideration when determining whether
any representation made is relevant. This will include a consideration whether
any representation made is frivolous or vexatious (as defined by guidance).
65. Though not specified by the relevant legislation or guidance, the Authority will
only consider representations received in writing, be this by letter, facsimile,
e-mail or via our online portal. Representations must be made within the relevant
time period specified in the Act for the application type being considered.

DETERMINATION OF APPLICATIONS AND INTEGRATION OF
POLICIES
66. The Authority will carry out its licensing responsibilities as swiftly, efficiently and
as cost effectively as possible, through a system of a Licensing Committee and
Licensing Sub-Committees, membership of which is drawn from Members of the
Licensing Committee.
67. Applications will be determined by the Licensing Sub-Committees and / or
officers in accordance with the Schedule of Delegations outlined at Appendix 2.
68. Where no representations are made in respect of an application, or in the event
that representations are withdrawn before a hearing can be held (and all parties
agree a hearing is unnecessary), officers are delegated to grant the licence or
certificate without the need to refer the application to a licensing sub-committee.
69. Where appropriate, and where resources permit, officers from the licensing team
will facilitate mediation between applicants, Responsible Authorities and other
parties in respect of applications where representations are made. Mediation of
this nature is designed to reach a mutually agreeable consensus incorporating
conditions, adjusted times or other such measures so as to satisfy the concerns
expressed by the other parties culminating in the withdrawal of representations
and therefore negating the requirement to refer to a Sub-Committee for
determination.
70. There is a clear distinction between the roles and responsibilities of the Council in
relation to its planning and Licensing Authority functions, and any approval or
rejection under either regime does not imply or lead to a similar decision under
the other. However, the Authority expects that applications for licences should
normally be for premises with appropriate planning consent for the activities
concerned. It is recognised that there is nothing in the legislation which prevents
applications made under the licensing regime from being granted in the absence

19

Agenda Item 5

Page 30

of appropriate planning permission but where this happens, the matter will be
brought to the attention of the Head of the Council’s Planning Service.
71. Where businesses have indicated, when applying for a licence under the Act, that
they have also applied for planning permission or that they intend to do so, the
Authority will seek advice and enter into discussion with the Council’s Planning
Service prior to determination with the aim of agreeing mutually acceptable
operating hours and scheme designs.
72. The Council will endeavour where possible to secure proper integration between
its licensing policy and its strategies for crime and disorder, planning, culture,
transport, tourism and economic development. Members of the Licensing
Committee will, where appropriate, receive reports on these issues to facilitate
decisions and any review of current policy.

APPLICATIONS FOR REVIEW
73. Applications will be determined by the Licensing Sub-Committees and / or
officers in accordance with the Schedule of Delegations outlined at Appendix 2.
74. Any Responsible Authority or other party may make an application for review in
respect of any granted licence where it becomes apparent that, because of some
matter arising at the premises, one or more of the licensing objectives are not
being promoted. Anyone seeking to apply for the review of a licence is advised to
contact the Licensing Team [see paragraph 46 for contact details] for advice on
the application process.
75. Following guidance, the Authority will not consider more than one application in
any 12 month period for the review of a licence on the same or similar grounds,
except in exceptional and compelling circumstances such as continued disorder
clearly associated with the management of the premises. Similarly, more than
one application for review on the same or similar grounds will be accepted in the
event of expedited reviews or a review following a closure order.
76. The Authority has delegated the function of determining whether requests for
Reviews should be rejected on the grounds that they are frivolous, vexatious or
repetitive to designated officers, who will consult with the Chair or Vice Chair of
the Licensing Committee.

ENFORCEMENT PROTOCOLS
77. The Authority has established effective working arrangements with the Police and
the London Fire Brigade, Trading Standards and other relevant enforcement
agencies to ensure effective enforcement of the Act and any matters brought to
its attention by way of inspection, investigation or complaint, are referred to the
most appropriate authority for consideration.

20

Page 31

Agenda Item 5

78. Licensing officers undertake inspections and visits of licensed premises, both
independently and in partnership with other authorities. Inspections are designed
to assess compliance with the terms and conditions of the respective licence and
as such, resources will be targeted at those premises, deemed by virtue of
history, volume of complaints, or nature of business (for example) to be
performing poorly.
79. The Licensing Team has implemented a risk-based inspection programme, which
results, where resources permit, in routine inspections of licensed premises at a
frequency determined by assessed criteria, in order to prevent complaints,
promote good practice and to assess ongoing compliance with licence
requirements. At all times the Authority aims to reduce the regulatory burden on
businesses, and as such will work closely with other inspecting authorities in
carrying out visits or inspections.
80. In carrying out its enforcement function this Authority will comply with the
Regulators Code and will:
a. Carry out our activities in a way that supports those we regulate to comply
and grow
b. Provide simple and straightforward ways to engage with those we regulate
and hear their views
c. Base our regulatory activities on risk
d. Share information about compliance and risk
e. Ensure clear information, guidance and advice is available to help those
we regulate meet their responsibilities to comply
f. Ensure that our approach to regulatory activities is transparent

SPECIAL POLICY ON CUMULATIVE IMPACT
81. At its meeting on 31 March 2014, the Licensing Committee determined that it was
necessary to adopt a Special Policy on Cumulative Impact for a total of 7
locations within the Borough. A further review of the Special Policy on Cumulative
Impact, now a Cumulative Impact Assessment, forms part of this review.
82. The proposed Cumulative Impact Assessment can be found at Appendix 3 to
this draft Policy.
83. Applicants should be aware that in publishing a Cumulative Impact Assessment
(CIA) a licensing authority is setting down a strong statement of intent about its
approach to considering applications for the grant or variation of premises
licences or club premises certificates in the area described. Having published a
CIA a licensing authority must have regard to the assessment when determining
or revising its statement of licensing policy. The CIA does not, however, change
the fundamental way that licensing decisions are made. It is therefore open to the
licensing authority to grant an application where it considers it is appropriate and
where the applicant can demonstrate in the operating schedule that they would
not be adding to the cumulative impact.

21

Agenda Item 5

Page 32

84. Applications in areas covered by a CIA should therefore give consideration to
potential cumulative impact issues when setting out the steps that will be taken to
promote the licensing objectives. Where relevant representations are received
and a licensing authority decides to grant an application it will need to provide the
applicant, the chief officer of police and all parties who made relevant
representations with reasons for granting the application and this should include
any reasons for departing from their own policy.
85. The Authority will consider whether there is a need for any additional special
policies on cumulative impact where representations from responsible authorities
and/or other parties are received. In doing so, the Authority will consider whether
the evidence demonstrates that the cumulative effect of a number of premises in
a given area is adversely affecting the licensing objectives, e.g. with regard to the
prevention of crime and disorder and public nuisance objectives.
86. In considering whether to adopt a Cumulative Impact Policy in a given area, the
Authority will always consider whether there is good evidence that crime and
disorder or nuisance are happening and are caused by the customers of licensed
premises. The Authority will also consider, in areas where a problem is not
currently evident, the risk that cumulative impact is imminent.
87. The Authority recognises that the absence of a Special Policy on Cumulative
Impact does not prevent any Responsible Authority or Interested Party from
making representations on the basis that an application would, if granted, give
rise to or exacerbate negative cumulative impact.
88. The matter of ‘need’ (whether there is a need for another premises in a given
area) is not a matter for consideration of the Authority, and will therefore not form
part of the decision making process.

HOURS OF OPERATION
89. The Authority does not propose to designate areas with a view to prescribing a
general terminal hour of opening, but otherwise will consider each application on
its merits, having regard to the proposed use of the premises and the nature of
the locality in which it is situated.
90. The Authority will generally seek to permit shops and supermarkets to sell
alcohol, for consumption off the premises, during their normal trading hours in
which they are (or will be) open for shopping.
91. However in cases where individual shops become a focus for disorder,
disturbance or under age sales, a limitation on permitted hours for the sale of
alcohol may be imposed following representations.

PROMOTION OF EQUALITY

22

Page 33

Agenda Item 5

92. The Council in its role of Licensing Authority, recognises its obligation under
equality legislation covering race, disability, gender, age, sexual orientation and
religion or beliefs. The functions under the Licensing Act 2003 and this policy are
therefore operated accordingly.
93. In consideration of its wider responsibilities beyond licensing legislation and
related guidance, the Council considers that access to licensed premises and the
full range of entertainment provided by a licence should not be denied to anyone
who may be disabled. The Authority therefore expects all proprietors of licensed
premises to give due consideration to the needs and requirements for access to
their premises by disabled or less mobile customers, and to make adequate
arrangements to ensure their operations are inclusive in accordance with relevant
equality and access legislation.
94. Consideration might also need to be given to conditions that ensure adequate
arrangements exist to enable the safe evacuation of disabled customers in the
event of an emergency.

PROMOTION OF CULTURAL ACTIVITIES
95. The Council is anxious to ensure that broad cultural activity and entertainment is
not deterred by licensing requirements. To promote greater cultural diversity in
the performing arts, the Authority encourages applications for live music, dance,
theatre, street theatre and musical bands etc.

23

Agenda Item 5

Page 34

PART B – POLICY ON THE PROMOTION OF THE LICENSING
OBJECTIVES
96. The following is intended to help applicants by setting out criteria and
considerations that they should have in mind when drawing up an Operating
Schedule. The criteria, because they relate to the licensing objectives, will apply
to all applications to some degree but they may not necessarily apply equally, to
all applications. They have been developed with clear reference to the licensing
objectives and in consultation with the “responsible authorities” and following
broad community consultation.
97. The information set out should alert applicants to matters that responsible
authorities are likely to consider when deciding to make representations on an
application or to call for a review. It also draws the attention of applicants to
matters that are likely to be subject of proposed conditions designed to promote
the licensing objectives that may be attached to the grant of a licence.
98. It is expected that prior to making any application under the Act, applicants will
have undertaken a full risk assessment of the impact of their activities on the
promotion of the licensing objectives. Thereafter, applicants are expected to
submit a detailed operating schedule as part of the application, setting out the
steps they intend to take to promote the licensing objectives.
99. National guidance places an expectation upon applicants to give more detailed
and thorough consideration to the local area when making applications. The
Authority expects that applicants, in considering the content of their operating
schedules, will provide contextual information to support the steps they propose
to take to promote the licensing objectives, and in doing so applicants will be
expected to demonstrate an awareness of the local community in which the
premises will be based.
100. The Authority has developed guidance to assist applicants, responsible
authorities and other parties in considering what steps may be necessary to
promote the licensing objectives.
101. The Authority also considers that conditions imposed on granted licences, and
likewise the content of submitted operating schedules, should relate closely to the
circumstances of the locality within which the premises is situated.
102. The Sub-Committee will give particular emphasis to ensure that relevant and
appropriate measures are taken into consideration by applicants seeking to set
up or extend licensed businesses within each Neighbourhood. The approach
recognises more stringent controls may be appropriate in one area, but may not
be so in another.
103. Applicants are encouraged to discuss their operating schedules with relevant
responsible authorities in advance of making an application.

24

Page 35

Agenda Item 5

104. In respect of the promotion of the licensing objectives, the various policies are
outlined as follows:

LICENSING OBJECTIVE - PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER
To prevent crime and disorder, the Licensing Authority will take
into account the following considerations, where relevant, in
determining applications and reviews:
105. The Authority recognises that licensed premises, particularly late night
venues, can be a focus of crime and disorder problems. Therefore, whether the
premises make, or will make, a significant contribution to levels of crime and
disorder, and whether the Operating Schedule is based on an adequate risk
assessment, undertaken by the applicant, of the likelihood of crime and disorder
occurring as a result of the grant of the application is a key criterion.
106. Applicants must clearly set out and explain in their Operating Schedule how
the operation of the premises will promote the prevention of crime and disorder.
For pubs, bars and premises with facilities for music and dancing (e.g. night
clubs), a specific assessment is needed as to how the risks of violence and crime
in the premises and within the vicinity will be managed.
107. Where relevant representations are made, the Authority will tailor appropriate
conditions for premises licenses and club premises certificates. In doing so, the
Authority will treat the Police as a main source of advice on appropriate
conditions for particular premises.
108. The Authority will carry out its licensing functions so as to promote the
prevention of crime and disorder, by ensuring that Licence Holders take
measures to regulate the behaviour of persons on the premises and
patrons who are in the vicinity. The Police and local Community Safety
Partnership are the main source of advice on crime and disorder. Applicants are
recommended to seek advice on crime prevention procedures in their premises
from Sutton Police before making a formal application. Contact details are
provided in Appendix 1.
109. The Authority acknowledges that it holds a duty under Section 17 of the Crime
and Disorder Act 1998 to exercise its functions with due regard to the likely effect
of the exercise of those functions on crime and disorder in the Borough and the
need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder (including
anti-social and other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment); the
misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances and re-offending in the Borough.

PROOF OF AGE

25

Agenda Item 5

Page 36

110. In October 2010 a Mandatory Condition came into force requiring premises
with Licences authorising the sale or supply of alcohol to implement an age
verification policy in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. The condition
requires that the policy must incorporate measures to ensure that individuals who
appear to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the
policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing
their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.
111. The Authority recognises and supports the “Challenge 25” campaign, whereby
anyone appearing to be under the age of 25 is asked to provide identification to
demonstrate they are over 18, before being sold alcohol. The authority expects
all holders of licenses permitting the sale of alcohol to implement and actively
publicise “No ID – No Sale” schemes, and encourages applicants to adopt
current best practice on age verification policies – “Challenge 25”.
112.

Licence Holders are expected to include within their age verification policy:
a. documented training procedures to ensure staff are fully trained in age
verification procedures, including induction and regular refresher training
with signed records kept of that training.
b. use of till prompts in shops together with appropriate warning notices
being displayed at alcohol fixtures.
c. the use of refused sale records, which are regularly checked and signed
off by the Designated Premises Supervisor.

113. The Authority supports and recommends that premises accept identity cards
bearing the logo of the Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) accreditation
scheme, which aims to approve and accredit various proof of age schemes that
are in existence and thereby ensures that such schemes maintain high
standards, particularly in the area of integrity and security. Details of the PASS
scheme are available from the Trading Standards Responsible Authority [contact
details available at Appendix 1].

PUBWATCH AND RELATED INITIATIVES
114. The Council supports local Pubwatch schemes and similar initiatives. Such
schemes are demonstrations of good practice by the licensed trade. Licence
holders are encouraged to participate in local groups to help promote the
licensing objectives. Where appropriate the Council will offer advice and
assistance to such initiatives and where invited to participate will endeavour to do
so.

‘SIGNIFICANT’ EVENTS IN LICENSED PREMISES
115. Licensees are advised to consult the local Metropolitan Police Licensing Unit
to clarify whether a proposed event, for example an event outside of the normal
operational characteristic of the venue, or an event involving a high profile or
niche market artiste / DJ, is classed by them as ‘significant’.

26

Page 37

Agenda Item 5

116. Where a ‘significant’ event is proposed to take place at any licensed
premises, the licence holder will be expected to undertake a risk assessment and
liaise with the Metropolitan Police Service.

LICENSING OBJECTIVE - PUBLIC SAFETY
To promote public safety the Licensing Authority will take into
account the following considerations, where relevant, in
determining applications and reviews:
117. Whether appropriate and satisfactory general and technical risk assessments,
management procedures and certificates have been made available to the
relevant responsible authority and the licensing authority that demonstrate that
the public will be safe within and in the vicinity of the premises are the key criteria
relevant to this objective.
118. The Authority must try to ensure the safety of people visiting and working in
licensed premises. It will therefore need to be satisfied that measures to promote
public safety, including risk assessments, setting safe capacities, adequate
means of escape and, where appropriate, closed-circuit television are put in
place and adequately maintained, if not provided for by other regulatory regimes.
As such, it is expected that applicants will satisfactorily address these issues in
their operating schedules and plans/drawings submitted as part of the application
process.
119. The Authority is not in a position to impose conditions on licences that relate
to fire safety legislation, for whom the enforcing authority is the London Fire
Brigade (LFB). However, given that applications must be submitted to LFB, who
may make representations on applications which are not considered to be
demonstrating the promotion of public safety, applicants are advised to make
contact with their local fire safety officer for advice regarding measures to ensure
adequate fire protection and means of escape prior to the submission of
applications.
120. Whilst existing health and safety legislation will generally be sufficient to
control risks to the safety of the public in most premises, the Authority recognises
that, in some situations, statutory requirements may not be adequate, or be in
place, to ensure public safety. Where its right is invoked, the Authority may
impose conditions requiring the licence holder to take steps over and above
minimum legal requirements as may be necessary to ensure safety.
121. It should be noted that conditions relating to public safety should be those that
are appropriate in the particular circumstances of any individual premises or club
premises, and should not duplicate other requirements of existing health and
safety legislation. Equally, the attachment of conditions to a premises licence or

27

Agenda Item 5

Page 38

club premises certificate does not in any way relieve employers of their statutory
duty to comply with the requirements of primary health and safety or fire safety
legislation.
122. In addition to the points made in this section, applicants and responsible
authorities may wish to consider advice and guidance provided in a number of
separate publications and relevant British Standards, which may be of particular
use in relation to specific types of operation. Whilst a full list of helpful documents
is given in the Secretary of State’s Guidance, the following documents and
websites are considered to be particularly beneficial:
●
●
●
●

Technical Standards for Places of Entertainment’;
Managing Crowds Safely HSG154;
The Guide to the Safety at Sports Grounds;
Safety Guidance for Street Arts, Carnival, Processions and Large Scale
Performances;
● London Events Toolkit http://www.londoneventstoolkit.co.uk/about/; and
● The
Health
& Safety Executive guidance on event safety
http://www.hse.gov.uk/event-safety/

SPECIAL EFFECTS
123. The use of special effects in support of regulated entertainment is becoming
increasingly common. Special effects can present significant risks, and conditions
may be necessary to ensure appropriate storage, maintenance and use of such
effects in order to minimise any risk to the safety of the audience, performers and
/ or staff. Special effects which should be considered for such conditions include:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

dry ice machines and cryogenic fog;
smoke machines and fog generators;
pyrotechnics, including fireworks;
real flames;
firearms;
motor vehicles;
strobe lighting;
lasers; and
explosives and highly flammable substances.

124. In some circumstances, conditions may be necessary to require that special
effects are only used with the prior notification of the licensing authority or
following inspection by an appropriate authority.

INDOOR SPORTING ENTERTAINMENT
125. In premises where the provision of indoor sporting entertainment in the
presence of an audience, it may be necessary for conditions to control or restrict
seating arrangements, the provision of stewards and appropriate medical
facilities.

28

Page 39

Agenda Item 5

126. At water based events (swimming competitions for example) it may also be
appropriate to include conditions requiring staff adequately trained in rescue and
life safety procedures to be present.

LICENSING OBJECTIVE - PUBLIC NUISANCE
To prevent public nuisance the Licensing Authority will take into
account the following considerations, where relevant, in
determining applications and reviews:
127. The Borough has a substantial residential population and the authority has a
responsibility to protect it from nuisance. In certain locations, the increased
concentration of entertainment uses and longer hours of operation have
adversely affected local residents. Commercial occupiers of premises also have a
legitimate expectation of an environment that is attractive and help sustain their
business. The role of the Council as a licensing authority is to maintain an
appropriate balance between the legitimate aspirations of the entertainment
industry and the needs of residents, businesses, workers, shoppers and visitors.
128. The potential for nuisance associated with the style, characteristics and
activities of the business to be carried on at the premises and the potential steps
which could be taken to reduce the risk of nuisance occurring are therefore the
key criteria relevant to this objective. This will particularly apply where there is
residential accommodation in the proximity of the premises.
129. The Authority will expect applicants to set out in their Operating Schedules the
steps taken, or proposed to be taken, to deal with the potential for public
nuisance arising from the operation of the premises or open air site under the
licence.
130. Applicants should identify and describe through a risk assessment how these
risks will be managed. Public nuisance could include low-level nuisance perhaps
affecting a small number of people living locally as well as major disturbance
affecting the whole community. It may include, in appropriate circumstances, a
reduction of the living and working amenity and environment of interested parties
in the vicinity of licensed premises.
131. Eating and drinking outdoors is increasingly popular and the banning of
smoking inside premises has increased the number of people outside premises
smoking or accompanying smokers. The noise of people outside can cause
public nuisance, even if the individuals are well behaved. In addition, the blocking
of footways, and more occasionally roadways, by people standing around
drinking and smoking is a public nuisance whether or not it amounts to an offence
of obstruction or becomes an issue of public safety. The Authority will therefore

29

Agenda Item 5

Page 40

encourage the management of people standing outside premises to minimise the
adverse effects on the licensing objectives.
132. Hours of opening and hours for each licensable activity must be included in
the Operating Schedule. Conditions will be attached on the hours when premises
are permitted to be open to the public or to members and their guests for the
prevention of public nuisance. Conditions may be appropriate to limit when
certain licensable activities take place, even though the premises might otherwise
be open to the public at these times. Conditions may also be applied referring to
the parts of premises that might be used for certain licensable activities at certain
times. Stricter conditions should be expected in areas where there is a high
proportion of residential accommodation.
133. Applicants should carefully consider the hours that they wish to operate each
licensable activity and when to close their premises for the entry of customers
and when to require them to leave. The Authority will similarly consider hours for
licensable activities and closing times and appropriate conditions. Applicants
should consider the benefits of stopping serving alcohol before other licensable
activities stop and a suitable time before the premises close and customers leave
(“winding down” period). In noise sensitive areas, operators should consider
stopping playing dance music and to switch to quieter, slower tempo music with a
less pronounced beat while other listenable activities continue.
134. Applicants are encouraged not to apply for later hours than they will in fact
operate, particularly seeking 24 hour licenses where there is no intention of
operating on this basis. Responsible authorities will generally be more likely to
make objections the later the hour that licensable activities are proposed to take
place.
135. The consideration of hours of operation will be in the context of the particular
circumstances of each application and the licensable objectives of preventing
crime and disorder and public nuisance. The hours at which noise may occur
and disturbance of resident’s reasonable expectation of relaxation and sleep for
themselves (and for families with young children) will be of particular concern.
For example, conditions will generally be framed to ensure that closing hours on
nights when residents have to get up for work the next morning are earlier than
on other nights when they are less likely to do so.
136. Conditions that might be applied to premises licenses include, maximum
noise levels over particular time periods, the installation of sound limiters,
acoustic lobbies, provision of signs, publicity and verbal advice to patrons to
leave quietly and by certain routes, controlling nuisance from light pollution,
taking food or drink outside, flyposting, distribution of leaflets, litter and cleaning
of the frontage and in the vicinity of the premises.
137. Changes brought about by the deregulation of Regulated Entertainment mean
certain activities are no longer considered licensable activity and consequently
cannot generally be subject to conditions. Whilst existing conditions relating

30

Page 41

Agenda Item 5

directly or indirectly to such entertainment between 08:00 and 23:00 no longer
have effect during those times, licence holders are strongly recommended to
continue to provide the control measures those conditions require so as to
demonstrate due diligence.
138. The Environmental Protection Act 1990 provide some protection to the
general public from the effects of noise and other statutory nuisances arising from
licensed premises. In addition the London Local Authorities Act 2004 (as
amended) gives authorised officers the power to issue fixed penalty notices.
Conditions that promote good management practice or otherwise promote the
prevention of public nuisance residents will be applied in respect of licensable
activities where appropriate.

LICENCING OBJECTIVE - THE PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM
HARM
To protect children from harm, the Licensing Authority will take in
to account the following considerations, where relevant, in
determining applications and reviews:
139. The Authority supports the formation of family-friendly entertainment
environments and whether there are appropriate measures in place to protect
children from harm (including moral, psychological and physical harm) is the key
criteria relevant to this objective.
140. Applicants are expected to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule that
suitable and sufficient measures have been identified and implemented to protect
children from harm, having regard to the style, characteristics and activities of the
premises and the activities provided. The measures expected to be considered
may include staff training on how to control the entry of young people under 18
and the vetting of staff who will supervise them. Applicants will have to give
particular regard to these measures in applications for licences involving:
● the sale of alcohol
● children’s performances
● attractions or performances likely to attract children
141. It is an offence to sell alcohol to children (under 18). There is a further specific
offence of persistently selling alcohol to children if sales are made on 2 or more
occasions within 3 months. Unaccompanied children under 16 should not be on
“premises being used exclusively or primarily for the supply of alcohol” e.g. pubs,
bars and nightclubs. In addition, unaccompanied children under the age of 16
should not be allowed on licensed premises between the hours of midnight and
5.00 am. Operating Schedules should consider whether there will be

31

Agenda Item 5

Page 42

circumstances when children under 16 should not be on the premises and
whether they were there for a specific purpose such as partaking of a meal or
being entertained by live performances and whether there were any specific
aspects of licensable or other activities taking place where children should be
excluded e.g. drinks promotions or particular types of performances or
competitions.
142. Other than specific instances where the Act prohibits unaccompanied children
on licensed premises, it does not in itself prohibit the access by children to any
type of licensed premises. The Authority considers, therefore, that conditions
prohibiting access to a premises, or parts of premises, may be necessary in
some circumstances, particularly in premises where:
● There have been convictions for serving alcohol to minors or where there is
evidence of underage drinking.
● Entertainment of an adult (language, sexual imagery etc) nature is provided.
● There is a strong element of Gambling (note: the Gambling Act 2005 also
provides for the protection of children from harm).
● There is a known association with drug taking or dealing.
● Where, be it after a certain time or otherwise, the predominant use of the
premises is for the consumption of alcohol on the premises.
143. These circumstances are not considered to be the only occasions when such
conditions may be appropriate, and as such, on receipt of representations from
responsible authorities or interested parties, the Authority may consider it
necessary to impose such conditions in other situations.
144. At premises and performances which are likely to attract a substantial number
of children, the Authority may attach conditions requiring the presence of a
sufficient number of adult staff on the premises to ensure the well-being of the
children during an emergency.
145. No condition will be attached to any licence that requires the licence holder to
admit people under a specified age, unless such a condition is volunteered by an
applicant.
146. In 2015 a specific Safeguarding Children Policy for Licensed Premises was
developed and published by the London Local Safeguarding Children Board
(LSCB). It is intended to provide advice and guidance for all staff (paid or unpaid)
involved in premises which have been licensed under The Licensing Act 2003. It
gives some basic information about what to do if you are concerned about a child
and how your local Children’s Social Care and Metropolitan Police Team will
respond to and deal with reports about children whose welfare is causing
concern, including:
● Being alert to the possibility of child abuse and neglect, i.e. the definition,
prevalence, identifying features in a child or adult, legal parameters and
social consequences;

32

Page 43

Agenda Item 5

● Having enough knowledge to recognise an abusive or potentially abusive
event or set of circumstances;
● Knowing who in the organization to raise your concerns with,
● Being competent in taking the appropriate immediate or emergency action,
and
● Knowing how to make a referral to Social Services and/or the Police.
147. Recommended best practice is for the owner/licence holder to nominate
themselves or a senior staff member to have the following responsibilities** in
relation to safeguarding children for the licensed premises – to:
● Arrange safeguarding children training for all staff;
● Monitor and report on whether all staff have received the minimum (initial
and refresher) safeguarding children training;
● Ensure that all staff have read and know where to find this policy and the
Government Guidance: “What To Do If You’re Worried a Child is Being
Abused”;
● Ensure that an up-to-date Safeguarding Children Procedures Poster is
displayed for all staff at all times;
● Provide advice and support to staff when they have a concern about
safeguarding a child;
● Record all concerns raised by staff; and
● Be the contact person for the local Children’s Social Services and the
Police in relation to all incidents or concerns related to the safeguarding of
children on or linked to the premises.
** This list is not exhaustive
148. The LSCB has a statutory role to coordinate what is done by each person or
body for the purposes of safeguarding children and promoting the welfare of
children in the local area, and ensuring the effectiveness of this work.

RESPONSIBLE RETAILING
149. The Authority expects all applicants and licence holders to recognise the
responsibility that the retail sale or supply of alcohol brings in order to promote
the licensing objective relating to the protection of children from harm.

THE SHOWING OF FILMS
150. Where an application seeks permission to exhibit films, the Authority expects
applicants to detail in their operating schedule the steps they intend to take to
prevent children from viewing age restricted films, trailers or advertisements.
151. A mandatory condition set out in the Act requires that where a licence
authorises the exhibition of films, the licence must include a condition requiring
the admission of children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted in
accordance with any recommendation made by a film classification body.

33

Agenda Item 5

Page 44

152. Therefore, where the exhibition of films is permitted, the Licensing Authority
will require that the age restrictions applied by the British Board of Film
Classification (BBFC) are to be complied with.
153. Films that have not been classified by the BBFC may only be shown after they
have been classified by the Council. The Council has delegated the function of
classifying such films, using the BBFC classification guidelines prevailing at the
time, to designated officers. The Council requires that films are presented for
classification at least 28 days before the intended date of exhibition.
154. In some circumstances, it may be appropriate for additional conditions relating
to the admission of children to film exhibitions be included. Matters for
consideration in such respects may include:
● Conditions specify that immediately before each exhibition at the premises of
a film there shall be exhibited on screen for at least five seconds in such a
manner as to be easily read by all persons in the auditorium a reproduction of
the certificate of the classification or as regards a trailer advertising a film, of a
statement indicating the classification of the film being trailed.
● The display of notices inside and outside the premises so that persons
entering can readily be made aware of the classification attached to any film
or trailer.

THEATRES & OTHER PERFORMANCES OF PLAYS
155. Whilst the admission of children to theatres, or other performances of plays,
would not normally be restricted, it may be appropriate to do so in certain
circumstances in order to promote the licensing objective of the protection of
children from harm.
156. The admission of children to the performance of a play would normally be left
to the discretion of the licence holder; however a condition restricting the
admission of children to performances involving nudity and / or adult material or
language may be required.

OPERATING SCHEDULES – ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS
157. The following section sets out a range of additional considerations and
controls that the Authority may have regard to, depending on the location of the
applicants premises, in order to ensure that the licensing objectives are met.
Some of the controls described may have greater significance and be given
greater emphasis by the Licensing Sub-committee as a result.
Door Supervision

34

Page 45

Agenda Item 5

● The use of door supervisors at licensed premises play a valuable role in
controlling queues, undertaking searches for the purpose of preventing drugs
or offensive weapons being admitted and for ensuring any capacity limits are
not exceeded
● Whilst all applicants should assess whether the provision of door staff is
necessary for their business, the authority expects that all Pubs, Bars,
Nightclubs and premises offering Late Night Refreshment to provide door
supervisors. The number of door supervisors should be identified through risk
assessment and with due consideration to the health and safety of door
supervisors, staff and the public. This assessment should consider the need
for female door supervisors.
● Where its right is invoked, the Authority will generally impose a condition
requiring door staff on licences for this type of premises, unless it can be
demonstrated that such a condition is not appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives.
● Applicants and licence holders are expected to ensure that a policy on
searching customers is devised and implemented. Searches of persons bags,
or in some cases pat down or metal detector body searches may be
necessary to prevent and deter the bringing into licensed premises of drugs
and / or offensive weapons. Door supervisors are trained and equipped with
the necessary skills to undertake this task, and it may be necessary in certain
types of establishments for conditions to be included that require the carrying
out of searches.
Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) systems
● CCTV cameras are a vital asset to both the licence holder and the regulatory
authorities. Footage obtained by CCTV has proven to be a vital source of
evidence in detecting crime at and immediately outside licensed premises.
● Overt cameras also help deter criminal acts, such as theft of stock, and whilst
it is acknowledged that the installation of CCTV may incur considerable
expenditure, the Authority expects all applicants and licence holders to
consider providing CCTV systems
● The Authority expects that CCTV systems will:
o cover all entrances, exits, internal and external areas of the premises.
o Ensure that images are stored for a minimum of 31 days
o Enable images to be delivered to Police or Council Officers in a
recognised format, in a timely manner, upon request

35

Agenda Item 5

Page 46

o be adequately maintained so as to operate and record at all times the
premises are open (for crime prevention purposes, it is recommended
that CCTV systems are operational 24 hours a day, using motion
sensors during non-opening hours).
Control of glass drinking vessels
● Glass drinking vessels can be used as weapons and when broken can inflict
serious injury during incidents of disorder, not only within licensed premises,
but further away if such vessels are permitted to be removed from the
premises.
● It is expected that applicants will consider whether drinks should be provided
in toughened glass drinking vessels, and whether, after a given time at night,
drinks usually served in bottles should be decanted before service. Such
conditions can be subject to appropriate exceptions, for example in the case
of champagne bottles or wine sold for consumption with a table meal.
● The Authority considers that all premises serving alcohol for consumption on
the premises should be subject to conditions preventing open bottles being
taken away from the premises.
Lighting
● In certain premises where levels of natural light may be reduced,
consideration should also be given to conditions that ensure that electrical
lighting in any area accessible to members of the public shall be maintained
fully operational when the premises is open.
● It may also be necessary to use conditions to control the use of external
lighting operated in conjunction with licensable activities. For example,
floodlighting to gardens and smoking areas should only illuminate intended
areas, and flashing or particularly bright lights on or outside licensed premises
must not cause a nuisance to nearby properties.
● However, the Authority recognises the benefits to the prevention of crime and
disorder of lighting in certain areas of the premises, and any conditions must
be mindful of ensuring such benefits are promoted.
Management Practices
● The Authority considers good management practices are essential, and would
expect applicants and licence holders to demonstrate good practice, where
appropriate through conditions requiring written documentation in respect of:

36

Page 47

Agenda Item 5

● Dispersal of customers
● Noise management
● Drugs policy
● Queue control and Searching
● Control of deliveries and the disposal of empty bottles and other refuse
late at night
● The control of noise emanating from licensed premises, or occurring as a
result of the provision of licensable activities, should be considered by
premises located close to areas of residential accommodation. In particular:
o In certain premises consideration should be given to conditions to
ensure that noise or vibration does not emanate from the premises.
This could be achieved through a requirement to keep doors and
windows closed, for example, or perhaps to require use of noise
limiters on amplification equipment.
o It may also be necessary to restrict the use of gardens or other external
drinking areas after certain times to reduce the level of noise likely to
be generated. For example, conditions may restrict the use of such
areas by preventing the taking of drinks or food into the areas after a
given time, but thereby still providing facilities for smokers.
o The disposal of refuse or recycling generated by the operation of a
licensed premises can, when undertaken at the wrong time of day,
cause significant noise particularly in respect of the moving and
disposal of glass bottles. It may therefore be necessary to condition
that undertaking of such activities will take place at times that will
minimise disturbance.
● A number of licensed premises, particularly those predominantly providing
late night refreshment, have the potential to affect the quantity of litter on the
streets around the neighbourhood. It is expected that any premises wishing to
provide late night refreshment, as their predominant licensable activity will
agree to conditions requiring the cleaning of the pavement immediately in
front of their premises. The same conditions may also be necessary for
businesses that generate significant quantities of printed matter, by way of
flyers or promotions.

37

Agenda Item 5

Page 48

● The Authority recognises the importance of Pubwatch and considers the
attendance at meetings of representatives from premises contributing to the
evening and late night economy as essential.

38

Page 49

Agenda Item 5

APPENDIX 1
CONTACT DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES
AUTHORITY

ADDRESS

TELEPHONE
EMAIL ADDRESS

THE LOCAL
PLANNING
AUTHORITY

24 DENMARK
CARSHALTON
SM5 2JG

DEVELOPMENTCONTROL@SUTTON.GOV.UK

RESPONSIBLE
AUTHORITY FOR
NOISE AND
ENVIRONMENTAL
POLLUTION

24 DENMARK

020 8770 5070

CARSHALTON
SM5 2JG

ENVIRONMENTALHEALTH@SUTTON.GOV.UK

HEALTH &
SAFETY (LOCAL
AUTHORITY

24 DENMARK

020 8770 5070

ENFORCED

020 8770 5070

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

CARSHALTON
SM5 2JG

BRS@SUTTON.GOV.UK

HM INSPECTOR
OF HEALTH &
SAFETY
FOD LONDON
DIVISION
HEALTH &
SAFETY
EXECUTIVE
ROSE COURT
2 SOUTHWARK
BRIDGE
LONDON
SE1 4LW

0845 345 0055
HSE.INFOLINE@CONNAUGHT.PLC.UK

24 DENMARK

020 8770 5070
TRADING.STANDARDS@SUTTON.GOV.UK

BUSINESSES)

HEALTH &
SAFETY (HSE
ENFORCED
BUSINESSES)

TRADING
STANDARDS

ROAD

CARSHALTON
SM5 2JG
LONDON FIRE &
EMERGENCY
PLANNING
AUTHORITY

SOUTH EAST AREA

3
169 UNION
STREET
LONDON
SE1 0LL

020 8555 1200
X 37630
FIRESAFETYREGULATIONSE@LONDON-FIRE.GOV.UK

39

Page 50

Agenda Item 5

METROPOLITAN
POLICE

LICENSING OFFICE
SUTTON POLICE
STATION
6 CARSHALTON

020 8649 0793
ZT-LICENSING@MET.POLICE.UK

ROAD

SM11 4RF
PROTECTION OF
CHILDREN FROM
HARM

SUTTON LOCAL

020 8770 5000

SAFEGUARDING
CHILDREN BOARD
THE LODGE
HONEYWOOD WALK

CARSHALTON
SM5 3NX

PUBLIC HEALTH

DIRECTOR OF

020 8770 4998

PUBLIC HEALTH

PUBLICHEALTH_ADMIN@SUTTON.GOV.UK

LONDON BOROUGH
OF SUTTON
ST NICHOLAS WAY
SUTTON

SM1 3RA

THE LICENSING
AUTHORITY

24 DENMARK
ROAD

020 8770 5070
LICENSING@SUTTON.GOV.UK

CARSHALTON
SM5 2JG

40

Page 51

Agenda Item 5

APPENDIX 2
DELEGATION OF LICENSING DECISIONS
Matter to be dealt with

APPLICATION FOR A PERSONAL
LICENCE

Full Committee

Sub-Committee

Officers

If a Police
objection is made

If no objection

APPLICATION FOR PERSONAL
LICENCE WITH UNSPENT

All cases

CONVICTIONS

APPLICATION FOR PREMISES
LICENCE/CLUB PREMISES
CERTIFICATE

APPLICATION FOR A
PROVISIONAL STATEMENT

APPLICATION TO VARY PREMISES
LICENCE/CLUB CERTIFICATE
APPLICATION TO VARY A
DESIGNATED PERSONAL LICENCE
HOLDER

If a relevant
representation
made

If no relevant
representation
made

If a relevant
representation
made

If no relevant
representation
made

If a relevant
representation
made

If no relevant
representation
made

If a Police
objection is made

All other cases

REQUEST TO BE REMOVED AS A
All cases

DESIGNATED PERSONAL LICENCE
HOLDER

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF
PREMISES LICENCE

If a Police
objection is made

All other cases

APPLICATIONS FOR INTERIM
AUTHORITIES

If a Police
objection is made

All other cases

APPLICATION TO REVIEW
PREMISES LICENCE/CLUB

All cases

PREMISES CERTIFICATE

DECISION ON WHETHER A
REPRESENTATION IS IRRELEVANT,

All cases

FRIVOLOUS, VEXATIOUS ETC

41

Agenda Item 5

Matter to be dealt with

Page 52

Full Committee

Sub-Committee

Officers

DETERMINATION OF AN
OBJECTION NOTICE TO A

All cases

TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICE

All Cases
(decision made by the
officer appointed in
the Council’s Scheme
of Delegations*)

APPLICATION FOR A MINOR
VARIATION

APPLICATION BY A COMMUNITY
PREMISES TO DISAPPLY
MANDATORY CONDITIONS

DECISION ON WHETHER A CLUB
TO WHICH A CLUB PREMISES
CERTIFICATE APPLIES NO LONGER
SATISFIES CONDITIONS FOR BEING
A QUALIFYING CLUB (S90 OF THE

LICENSING ACT 2003)

If a Police
Representation
Received

Where no relevant
representation is
received
(decision made by the
officer appointed in
the Council’s Scheme
of Delegations*)

All Cases
(decision made by the
officer appointed in
the Council’s Scheme
of Delegations * in
consultation with the
Chair of Licensing)

* The officer currently appointed in the Scheme of Delegations is the Group Manager
Regulatory Services, Kingston and Sutton Shared Environment Services

42

Page 53

Agenda Item 5

APPENDIX 3

SPECIAL POLICY ON CUMULATIVE IMPACT

43

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 55

Agenda Item 5

Appendix B

LICENSING ACT 2003
CUMULATIVE IMPACT ASSESSMENT
In support of
STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY
2019-2024

Approved on:

## December 2018

Published on:

## December 2018

In effect from: ## January 2019

This Cumulative Impact Assessment is published in support of the Statement of Licensing Policy of the
London Borough of Sutton, the relevant Licensing Authority, prepared under Section 5 of the Licensing Act
2003.

Version 1.1 DRAFT

Agenda Item 5

Page 56

Licensing Policy Review 2017- Cumulative Impact Assessment
1. Under the Licensing Act 2003 the council is required to publish a statement of licensing
policy every 5 years. The purpose of the Licensing Policy is to inform applicants and
residents about the way in which the Licensing Authority intends to make decisions
about licence applications and how licensed premises are likely to be permitted to
operate.
2. As a Licensing Authority, the council has a duty to promote the following licensing
objectives and these objectives should underpin every decision that it makes
● Prevent of crime and disorder
● Secure public safety
● Prevent public nuisance
● Protect children from harm
3. This document explains our approach to cumulative impact and the review process:
●
●
●
●

the approach we have taken to the reviewing the current Licensing Policy
the evidence we have considered in formulating the draft policy
our assessment of cumulative impact areas
key changes to the licensing policy

Need for a Special Policy on Cumulative Impact
4. Whilst the Statement of Licensing Policy has incorporated a Special Policy on
Cumulative Impact since 2014 a review of the areas to which the Special Policy applies
was instigated in 2017.
5.

New regulations bringing into force Section 141 of the Policing and Crime Act 2018
were made on 6th April 2018. These made changes to the Licensing Act 2003,
introducing a new section 5A relating to Cumulative Impact Assessments (CIA) and
placing obligations upon Licensing Authorities in respect of the evidencing and review of
Special Policies.

6. Cumulative Impact is defined as the potential impact upon the promotion of the licensing
objectives of a number of licensed premises concentrated in one area.
7. A report was compiled that examined Sutton’s Police and Ambulance data between
August 2016 and July 2017. Police data was extracted from the Metropolitan Police
Crime Reporting Information System (CRIS) and mapped using the council Cartology
software. In addition statements were taken from Police Officers throughout the Borough
including the Local Policing Teams and other organisations that help manage the town
centre for example Sutton Street Pastors.

2

Page 57

Agenda Item 5

8. A decision to continue with or introduce a Special Policy on Cumulative Impact must be
based on evidence available to the Authority at the time that the Statement was
approved.
9. In respect of the 2017 review of Cumulative Impact, the evidence can be summarised as
follows:
● Analysis of the crime statistics shows that, between August 2016 and July 2017,
there is a visible trend towards crime, including violence against the person, between
the hours of 21:00 and 02:00. At this time high volumes of customers can be on the
high street at the same time following the closure of licensed venues.
● Rowdy or inconsiderate behaviour is the type of anti-social behaviour (ASB) most
closely linked to the use of alcohol. ASB has seen a rise across the Borough by 9% in
the last 3 years. Although some of this rise can be linked to the growing use of town
centre office space being converted into residential accommodation.
● Between July 2016 and June 2017, there was a heavy focus on alcohol related
assaults in Sutton Central. 67% of all alcohol related ambulance callouts in Sutton
Central took place between the hours of 18:00 hours and 06:00 hours the following
day suggesting they were predominately related to the night time economy.
10. A copy of the evidence considered in determining the need for a Special Policy on
Cumulative impact is available in the reports and minutes of the Licensing Committee
meetings of 25th September 2017 and 18th December 2017, available on request and
on the Council’s website www.sutton.gov.uk.

Effect of the Special Policy
11. Applicants should be aware that in publishing a CIA a licensing authority is setting down
a strong statement of intent about its approach to considering applications for the grant
or variation of premises licenses or club premises certificates in the area described.
12. Having published a CIA, the licensing authority must have regard to the assessment
when determining or revising its statement of licensing policy. The CIA does not,
however, change the fundamental way that licensing decisions are made. It is therefore
open to the licensing authority to grant an application where it considers it is appropriate
and where the applicant can demonstrate in the operating schedule that they would not
be adding to the cumulative impact.
13. Applications in areas covered by a CIA should therefore give consideration to potential
cumulative impact issues when setting out the steps that will be taken to promote the
licensing objectives. Where relevant representations are received and a licensing
authority decides to grant an application within an area to which a CIA applies, the
Authority must provide the applicant, the chief officer of police and all parties who made
relevant representations with reasons for granting the application and this should
include any reasons for departing from their own policy.

3

Agenda Item 5

Page 58

Special Policy on Cumulative Impact
14. [It is proposed] The Special Policy will apply as follows:
Sutton Town Centre (Sutton High Street extending to Sutton Green):
a. The Special Policy relates to all applications for new licences or variations that
increase hours or capacity or add licensable activities, except proposals
i. Which do not involve the sale of alcohol;
ii. Which do not involve the sale of alcohol beyond 21:00 hours, unless that
sale is to customers ordering substantial food at the same time and for
consumption on such premises with the alcohol, and
iii. For regulated entertainment not extending beyond 21:00 hours.
Premises that are requesting the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises
(off licence) come within this policy as they can contribute to problems of street
drinking, proxy purchasing, dispersal issues, so-called ‘preloading’, excessive
drinking and related disorder. Premises that are requesting late night refreshment
are also included in this policy for reasons of dispersal and related disorder.
North Cheam (Queen Victoria Junction to Staines Avenue , including Church
Hill Road to Chatsworth Road as shown on the map at XXXX):
b. The Special Policy relates to all applications for new licences or variations that
increase hours or capacity or add licensable activities.
15. The Authority is aware that the impact from premises can be different for premises with
different styles and characteristics. For example, while a large nightclub or high capacity
public house might add to problems of cumulative impact, a small restaurant, theatre or
live music venue (where alcohol is not the primary activity) may be considered
exceptional circumstances. However the fact that a premises will be/is exceptionally well
managed with a well-qualified applicant, or that there are no residential premises
nearby, will not be considered exceptional.

Responsible Authorities and Interested Parties
16. The Special Policy on Cumulative Impact does not relieve Responsible Authorities or
Interested Parties of the need to make representations in relation to applications in
respect of premises within the cumulative impact area.
17. The Authority must grant any application that does not attract any representations from
Interested Parties or Responsible Authorities, in terms consistent with the operating
schedule submitted.

4

Page 59

Agenda Item 5

18. If the Authority decides that an application should be refused, it will do so on the basis
that the grant of the application would undermine the promotion of one of the licensing
objectives and that conditions would be ineffective in preventing the problems involved,
and this will be shown in the decision.

5

Agenda Item 5

Page 60

APPENDIX A – Licensing Act 2003. Cumulative impact & Saturation
Sutton Town Centre (Sutton High Street extending to Sutton Green):

North Cheam (Queen Victoria Junction to Staines Avenue , including Church Hill
Road to Chatsworth Road as shown on the map at XXXX)

Final maps to follow

6

Page 61

Agenda Item 6

Report to:

Licensing Committee

Report title:

Review of the Gambling Policy

Report from:

Mary Morrissey - Strategic Director, Environment, Housing &
Regeneration

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:

Councillor Muhammad Sadiq

Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

David Kingstone, Team Leader Licensing & Environmental
Compliance, 020 8770 5162 / 0734 2055 767
Nick Cloke, Licensing Lead Officer, 020 8770 5622 / 020 8547 5600
ext. 4366

Corporate Plan
Priorities:
Open/Exempt:

●
●

Date:

24 September 2018

Making Informed Choices
Keeping People Safe

Open

Signed:

Date:

11 September 2018

1.

Summary

1.1

To consider the outcome of consultation on the draft revised Statement of Licensing Policy
under the Gambling Act 2005 and recommend the revised Statement of Licensing Policy for
2019-22 (as attached at appendices A and B) to Council for approval.

2.

Recommendations
The Licensing Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Agree the Statement of Licensing Policy under the Gambling Act 2005, subject to any
amendments as may be determined at the meeting, and recommend the Policy for approval by
Council.

Agenda Item 6

Page 62

3.

Background

3.1

The Licensing Authority is required to prepare, at least every three years, a Statement of Policy
outlining the principles it follows in exercising its functions under the Gambling Act 2005. The
policy can be revised at any time in the 3-year period to which it applies.

3.2

At its meeting of 18 June 2018 the Licensing Committee agreed a draft Licensing Policy for
public consultation. This consultation was carried out between 9 July and 30 August 2018, via
the Council’s website, in addition letters and emails were sent to the statutory consultees set out
in the Act including the police, persons carrying on gambling businesses in the Authority's Area
and bodies who represent the interests of persons who are likely to be affected by gambling
activities including representatives of resident associations, faith groups and other relevant
bodies.

3.3

The Statement of Licensing Policy has been compiled in consideration of the Gambling
Commission's Guidance to Licensing Authorities (2015, part amended September 2016).

3.4

A total of 2 responses were made to the consultation, both from persons involved in carrying on
gambling businesses in the Borough.

3.5

A copy of the draft Statement of Licensing Policy is given at appendix A, together with the Local
Area Profile which accompanies the Policy at appendix B.

4.

Issues

4.1

At its meeting of 18 June 2018 the Licensing Committee agreed a draft Licensing Policy for
public consultation. This consultation was carried out between 9 July and 30 August 2018 via
the Council’s website with letters and emails being sent to the statutory consultees set out in the
Act. Consultation included the police, persons carrying on gambling businesses in the
Authority's Area and bodies who represent the interests of persons who are likely to be affected
by Gambling activities including representatives of resident associations, faith groups and other
relevant bodies.

4.2

A copy of the responses to the consultation are given at appendix C.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

As a result of the response to the consultation made by Talarius Limited, two minor
amendments have been applied by Officers to the draft Licensing Policy given at appendix A,
those being a reference to the Regulators Code is now included (paragraph 22 of the Policy)
and a revision to the approach towards premises that are under construction or not yet built
(paragraphs 38-41).

5.2

In respect of the response from Gosschalks Solicitors on behalf of the Association of British
Bookmakers, whilst the typographical error highlighted has been corrected no other
amendments to Policy are proposed in consideration of their response.

Page 63

5.3

Agenda Item 6

Members are invited to consider the responses to the consultation and identify whether any
further amendments to the Policy are required.
Timescale

5.4

The Policy agreed at this meeting will be taken to Council on 12 November 2018 for approval.

5.5

In accordance with the Gambling Act 2005 a revised Statement must be published at least four
weeks before it comes into effect. The Council’s new policy must come into force on
31 January 2019, and therefore the new Policy, once approved at Council, will be published on
the website before 3 January 2019.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

There are no financial implications arising from this report or the publication of the revised
Statement of Licensing Policy under the Gambling Act 2005
Legal

6.2

Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 requires the Licensing Authority to prepare and publish a
Statement of Licensing Policy every 3 years. The next Statement must be published by 31
January 2019.

6.3

Section 25 of the Gambling Act 2005 requires the Authority to have regard to the Gambling
Commission’s Guidance when preparing its Statement of Licensing Policy.

Page 64

Agenda Item 6

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Gambling Act 2005 - Statement of Policy and Principles 2019-2022 DRAFT

B

Local Area Profile

C

Copies of the responses received to the consultation

Background documents
Gambling Commission Guidance to Licensing Authorities (2015, part amended 2016)

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date:11 September 2018

Consultation with other officers
Finance

No

N/A

Legal

Yes

Guy Bishop

Other Officers:
(This row can be deleted if no
other comments sought)

Yes

Nick Cloke,
Lead Officer Licensing

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

Yes

Completed

Page 65

Agenda Item 6

Appendix A

DRAFT

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Policy and Principles
2019 - 2022
Approved on: ## December 2018
Published on: ## December 2018
In effect from: ## January 2019

This Licensing Policy was approved by the London Borough of Sutton (The Council)
on <DATE TO BE INSERTED>. It is made in accordance with its responsibilities and
powers under the Gambling Act 2005, and takes into account guidance issued by the
Gambling Commission.

All references to the Guidance refer to the Gambling Commission's Guidance
to Licensing Authorities, 5th Edition, published September 2015 (as amended).

Agenda Item 6

Page 66

Contents
Page
PREFACE
Background
PART A – STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES
Declaration
The Licensing objectives
Consultation process
Responsible authorities
Interested parties
Exchange of information
Enforcement
Licensing Authority functions
PART B - PREMISES LICENCES
General Principles
Decision Making
Definition of premises (including split premises)
Premises ‘ready for gambling’
Location
Planning
Duplication with other statutory regimes
Licensing objectives
Conditions
Door Supervisors
Adult Gaming Centres
Family Entertainment Centres (Licensed)
Casinos
Bingo premises
Betting premises – Betting machines
Travelling fairs
Provisional Statements
Reviews
PART C – PERMITS, TEMPORARY AND OCCASIONAL USE NOTICES
Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre gaming machine permits
(Alcohol) Licensed premises gaming machine permits
Prize Gaming Permits
Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits
Temporary Use Notices
Occasional Use Notices
PART D – LOTTERIES
GLOSSARY – LICENCES, PERMITS AND NOTICES

Page | 2

Page 67

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX A – TABLE OF DELEGATES OF LICENSING FUNCTIONS
PREFACE
Background
The London Borough of Sutton lies to the south west of London with a population of
around 200,000. In terms of area, it covers nearly 17 square miles. It is bordered by
the London boroughs of Croydon, Merton and the Royal Borough of Kingston upon
Thames and the Surrey boroughs of Epsom and Ewell and Reigate and Banstead
The Council area is mainly urban with a more rural section of green belt land to the
south of the Borough. With 607 hectares of green space and 16 parks, Sutton is one
of London’s greenest boroughs. Sutton is divided into 18 wards, each represented by
three councillors. Outside of the Sutton town centre there are 7 distinctive district
centres with retail and commercial areas.
The Borough is experiencing a time of significant population increase, as seen
across London as a whole, which requires a substantial increase in the provision of
housing and employment opportunities. It is estimated that by 2031 the Borough will
need an additional 6,400 new homes.
There are no racecourses or dog tracks sited in the borough
A map of the area is contained in the Local Area Profile, a separate document that
accompanies this policy.
Should you have any comments in regards to this statement of policy please send
them via e-mail or letter to:
Licensing Team
Kingston and Sutton Shared Environmental Service
24 Denmark Road
Carshalton
SM5 2JG
E-mail: licensing@sutton.gov.uk

Page | 3

Page 68

Agenda Item 6

PART A – STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES
1.

The Licensing Authority has a duty under the Gambling Act 2005 to publish a
statement of policy at least every three years, giving the principles which the
Authority proposes to apply when exercising its statutory functions under the
Act.

2.

The first Licensing Policy was published in 2006 following consultation and
Council approval. This fifth edition takes into consideration the latest Gambling
Commission advice and issues and concerns that have arisen over the life of
the previous policy.

3.

This policy recognises that the Council has a legal obligation to work to
eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote equality of opportunity on the
grounds of age, disability, gender, race, religion or beliefs and sexual
orientation. The provisions of the Gambling Act 2005 and this Policy will
therefore be operated accordingly.

4.

The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on Human
Rights and makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way which is
incompatible with a Convention right. The Council has had particular regard to
the following relevant provisions of the European Convention on Human Rights
when determining this policy:▪

Article 6 that in the determination of civil rights and obligations, everyone
is entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an
independent and impartial tribunal established by law

▪

Article 8 that everyone has the right to respect for his home and private
and family life

▪

Article 1 of the First Protocol that every person is entitled to the peaceful
enjoyment of his or her possessions, including for example the
possession of a licence.

Declaration
5.

In producing this statement of policy, the Licensing Authority declares that
regard has been had to the Licensing Objectives set out in Gambling Act 2005,
the Guidance to Licensing Authorities issued by the Gambling Commission,
and responses from those consulted on the statement.

6.

This Statement of Policy was approved at a meeting of the Full Council on
<DATE TO BE INSERTED > and was published via our website on < DATE TO
BE INSERTED >.

7.

This statement of licensing policy does not override the right of any person to
make an application, to make representations about an application, or to apply
for a review of a licence, as each will be considered on its own merits and
according to the statutory requirements of the Gambling Act 2005.

The Licensing Objectives
Page | 4

Page 69
8.

In exercising functions under the Gambling Act 2005, the Licensing Authority
will have regard to the Licensing Objectives as set out in section 1 of the
Gambling Act 2005:
▪
▪
▪

9.

Agenda Item 6

Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime.
Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way.
Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling.

In addition when making decisions about premises licences and temporary use
notices the Licensing Authority will, in accordance with Section 153 of the
Gambling Act 2005, aim to permit the use of the premises and discharge its
legal duties in so far as it is:
▪
▪
▪
▪

In accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling
Commission.
In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling
Commission.
In a manner reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives and
In accordance with the authority’s statement of principles herein.

Consultation Process
10. The Gambling Act 2005 requires that the following parties are consulted by
licensing authorities when determining or reviewing its Statement of Policy:
▪ The Chief Officer of Police;
▪ One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the
interests of persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s
area;
▪ One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the
interests of persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the
authority’s functions under the Gambling Act 2005.
11. In reviewing this policy, the Licensing Authority consulted with the following
stakeholders between < DATE TO BE INSERTED > and < DATE TO BE
INSERTED >;
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

The Metropolitan Police Service, Sutton Police Station
The London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority
Local Safeguarding Children’s Board
Sutton Safer Partnership
Licence holders and gambling operators providing service in the Borough
Representatives of local businesses
Persons and businesses likely to be affected by authorising gambling
within the district
Public Health

Responsible Authorities

Page | 5

Agenda Item 6

Page 70

12. The licensing authority is required to state the principles it will apply in
exercising its powers under Section 157(h) of the Gambling Act 2005 to
designate, in writing, a body which is competent to advise the authority about
the protection of children from harm. The designated body must:
▪
▪

Be responsible for an area covering the whole of the licensing authority’s
area and,
Be answerable to democratically elected persons, rather than any particular
vested interest group.

13. In accordance with the suggestion in the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to
Licensing Authorities, this authority designates the Local Safeguarding Children
Board for this purpose.

14. The contact details of all the Responsible Authorities under the Gambling Act
2005 are available via the Council’s website at www.sutton.gov.uk
Interested parties
15. Interested parties are entitled to make representations about licence
applications, or apply for a review of an existing licence. These parties are
defined in the Gambling Act 2005, at section 158, as follows:
A person is an interested party in relation to an application for, or in respect of a
premises licence, if, in the opinion of the licensing authority which issues the
licence or to which the applications is made, the person
(a) Lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the
authorised activities.
(b) Has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities, or
(c) Represents persons who satisfy paragraph (a) or (b)
16. The licensing authority is required to state the principles it will apply in
exercising its powers under the Gambling Act 2005 to determine whether a
person is an interested party.
17. The Licensing Authority has determined that these principles are:
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

▪

Each case will be decided upon its merits.
The Authority will not apply a rigid rule to its decision making.
It will take account of the examples of considerations provided in the
Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities.
All decisions on premises licences and temporary use notices will be made
in accordance with Gambling Commission Guidance
Having ‘business interests’ will, in accordance with the Gambling
Commission's Guidance be given the widest possible interpretation and
include partnerships, charities, faith groups and medical practices.
Interested parties can be persons who are democratically elected such as
Local Authority Ward Councillors, Members of the Greater London
Authority, Members of Parliament, and Members of the European
Parliament. No specific evidence of being asked to represent an interested
Page | 6

Page 71

Agenda Item 6

person will be required as long as the elected member represents the ward
likely to be affected. For other representatives however, the licensing
authority will require written evidence that a person/body (e.g. an advocate
/ relative) representing someone who either lives sufficiently close to the
premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised activities and/or has
business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities has
been authorised so to do. A letter from the persons/group, requesting the
representation is sufficient.
Exchange of Information
18. Licensing authorities are required to include in their Licensing Policy the
principles to be applied by the authority in exercising the functions under
sections 29 and 30 of the Gambling Act 2005 with respect to the exchange of
information between it and the Gambling Commission, and the functions under
section 350 of the Act with the respect to the exchange of information between
it and the other persons listed in Schedule 6 to the Gambling Act 2005.
19. The principle that this Licensing Authority applies is that it will act in accordance
with the provisions of the Gambling Act 2005 in its exchange of information,
particularly when providing information to the authorities listed in section 350 of
the Act, and will be mindful of its obligations under the General Data protection
Regulations 2018 and the Data Protection Act 2018.
20. The licensing authority will also have regard to any Guidance issued by the
Gambling Commission on the matter of information exchange, as well as any
relevant regulations issued by the Secretary of State under the powers
provided in the Gambling Act 2005.
Enforcement
21. The Licensing Authority is required by regulation under the Gambling Act 2005
to state the principles it will apply in exercising functions under Part 15 of the
Act in respect to the inspection of premises; and its powers under section 346
of the Act to institute criminal proceedings in respect of the offences specified.
22. In carrying out its enforcement function this Authority will comply with the
Regulators Code and will:
a. Carry out our activities in a way that supports those we regulate to
comply and grow
b. Provide simple and straightforward ways to engage with those we
regulate and hear their views
c. Base our regulatory activities on risk
d. Share information about compliance and risk
e. Ensure clear information, guidance and advice is available to help
those we regulate meet their responsibilities to comply
f. Ensure that our approach to regulatory activities is transparent
23. This Licensing Authority’s principles are that it will be guided by the Gambling
Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities and will endeavour to be:
▪ Proportionate and only intervene when necessary. Remedies will be
appropriate to the risk posed and costs identified.
Page | 7

Agenda Item 6

Page 72

▪ Accountable in so far as to be able to justify decisions and be subject to
public scrutiny.
▪ Consistent with rules and standards being joined up and implemented fairly.
▪ Transparent in so far as regulation will be open, simple and user friendly.
▪ Targeted and focused on identified problems to minimise impacts,
particularly on the community.
▪ The Licensing Authority will endeavour whenever possible to avoid
duplication with other regulatory regimes.
24. The Licensing Authority’s main enforcement and compliance role under the
Gambling Act 2005 is to ensure compliance with the premises licences and
other permissions which it authorises in accordance with its Enforcement Policy
which is published on our website.
Licensing Authority functions
25. This policy relates to all those activities falling within the scope of the Gambling
Act 2005 for which the Council is the Licensing Authority and which includes
the following activities:▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

Casinos
Bingo & Bingo Premises
Betting premises
Tracks
Adult Gaming Centres
Family Entertainment Centres
Gaming Machines
Gaming Permits
Prize Gaming
Temporary and Occasional Use Notices
Small Society Lotteries

26. The Licensing Authority recognises that it is required under the Gambling Act
2005 to:
▪
▪
▪

▪
▪
▪
▪

▪
▪
▪

Be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling activities are
to take place by issuing Premises Licences
Issue Provisional Statements
Regulate members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes who wish to
undertake certain gaming activities via issuing Club Gaming Permits and/or
Club Machine Permits
Issue Club Machine Permits to Commercial Clubs
Grant permits for the use of certain lower stake gaming machines at
unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres
Receive notifications from alcohol licensed premises (under the Licensing
Act 2003) for the use of two or fewer gaming machines
Issue Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for premises licensed to
sell/supply alcohol for consumption on the licensed premises, under the
Licensing Act 2003, where there are more than two machines
Register small society lotteries below prescribed thresholds
Issue Prize Gaming Permits
Receive and Endorse Temporary Use Notices
Page | 8

Page 73
▪
▪
▪

Agenda Item 6

Receive Occasional Use Notices
Provide information to the Gambling Commission regarding details of
licences issued (see section above on ‘information exchange)
Maintain registers of the permits and licenses that are issued under these
functions

Page | 9

Page 74

Agenda Item 6

PART B - PREMISES LICENCES
General Principles
27. Premises licences are subject to the requirements set-out in the Gambling Act
2005 and regulations, as well as specific mandatory and default conditions
which are detailed in regulations issued by the Secretary of State. The
Licensing Authority is able to exclude default conditions and also attach others,
where it is believed to be appropriate.
Decision-making
28. The Licensing Authority recognises the need to implement its licensing
responsibilities as quickly, efficiently and cost effectively as possible. To that
end it will operate through the Council Licensing Committee and
Sub-Committees [drawn from the Members of the Licensing Committee] and
delegation to officers.
29. Applications will be dealt with by Sub-Committees and officers in accordance
with the scheme of delegation set out at Appendix A. However applications
delegated for action by officers may be referred to a Sub-Committee where
there are exceptional reasons for that to be done.
30. A Licensing Sub-Committee, drawn from members of the Licensing Committee,
will normally sit in public to hear applications where representations have been
received from interested parties and responsible authorities.
31. This Licensing Authority, in making decisions about premises licences, will aim
to permit the use of premises for gambling (as per section 153 of the Gambling
Act 2005) in so far as it determines appropriate:
▪
▪
▪
▪

In accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling
Commission;
In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling
Commission;
In a manner which is consistent with the licensing objectives; and is
In accordance with the Council’s Licensing Policy.

32. The Licensing Authority accepts the Gambling Commission's Guidance which
states that "Moral objections to gambling are not a valid reason to reject
applications for premises licences".
33. The Licensing Authority further accepts that unmet demand is not a criterion for
a licensing authority to consider when determining applications.

Page | 10

Page 75

Agenda Item 6

Definition of ’premises’ including ’split premises’
34. In the Gambling Act 2005, ’premises’ is defined as including "any place".
Section 152 prevents more than one premises licence applying to any place
however a single building could be subject to more than one premises licence,
provided they are for different parts of the building and the different parts of the
building can be reasonably regarded as being different premises. This
approach has been taken to allow large, multiple unit premises such as a
pleasure park, pier, track or shopping mall to obtain discrete premises licences,
where appropriate safeguards are in place.
35. However the Licensing Authority will focus particular attention to applications
where there are issues about sub-divisions of a single building or plot and will
ensure that mandatory conditions relating to access between premises are
observed and are achievable.
36. The Licensing Authority will nevertheless be cognisant of the current guidance
from the Gambling Commission in regard to these types of applications.
37. Part 7 of the Gambling Commission’s Guidance contains further information on
this issue, and the Licensing Authority will take this Guidance into account in its
decision-making regarding premises and ‘split premises’.
Premises ’ready for gambling’
38. A licence to use premises for gambling which have still to be constructed or
altered will only be issued where this Authority is satisfied
a.
that the premises ought to be permitted to be used for gambling; and
b.
that appropriate conditions can be put in place to cater for the fact that the
premises are not yet in the state in which they ought to be before
gambling can take place.
39. This Authority will expect that a new application will be made if the plans
submitted at the time of the application are changed in any material respect
during the construction and fitting out of the premises after the grant of the
licence to preserve the rights of interested parties and responsible authorities to
make representations
Plans
40. Applications for new premises licences, or to vary an existing licence, will be
expected to be clear that the premises are intended to be used for the primary
gambling activity proposed and that all gambling activity is clearly shown on the
plan.
41. In order to ensure that a premises is properly providing the primary gambling
activity this Authority will expect all new premises licence applications and all
variation applications to be accompanied by a plan that not only complies with
the requirements of the legislation but also clearly indicates the area used for
the primary gambling activity and any other gambling activity, including the
number and position of all machines (both betting machines and gaming
Page | 11

Agenda Item 6

Page 76

machines). Where the number and/or position of machines are altered this
Authority will expect a change of circumstance application to be made.
Local Risk Assessments
42. The Social Responsibility Code forming part of the Gambling Commissions
Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice requires that, from 6th April 2016,
operators assess the local risks to the licensing objectives arising from the
provision of gambling facilities at each of their premises and provide and
implement policies, procedures and control measures to mitigate any risks
identified.
43. The Licensing Authority considers that local risk assessments are a vital part of
the application process and expects all applications for new or variations to
premises licences to be supported by a risk assessment which considers, as a
minimum:
●
●
●
●

The location (see paragraphs 49 to 52 below)
The operation of gambling including staffing levels, staff training, security
and crime prevention measures, marketing / advertising and the display
and provision of information to support vulnerable persons.
The design of the premises including sight-lines from any staff areas /
counters to gaming equipment, entrances/exits and the external view into
the premises.
Control measures designed to minimise risks of crime and disorder,
including for example closed-circuit television (CCTV), remotely controlled
entrance mechanisms and age verification procedures.

44. Operators will be expected to review their risk assessment in the event of
significant changes in local circumstances including for example any
development or redevelopment of property, increase in pay day loan / pawn
broker service providers, public transport, increases or decreases in crime and
changes in competitor businesses.
45. The Authority will consider the risk assessment when determining applications.
The authority is particularly concerned about the:
● Clustering together of gambling premises in any one area of the Borough
● Appropriate measures are in place to prevent under-age gambling or the
exposure of under-age children to gambling
● Staffing levels in gambling premises are sufficient, and that staff are
suitably trained and supported to identify persons for whom gambling may
be a problem.
46.

Risk Assessments must, by their very nature, be based on the individual
premises and the issues in the local area, This Policy does not preclude any
application being made and each application will be considered and
determined on its own merits.

47. The Authority considers the onus is on the applicant/operator to demonstrate
how potential risks or concerns can be mitigated.

Page | 12

Page 77

Agenda Item 6

48. The Risk Assessment should be kept on the individual premises holding the
licence to assist staff in carrying out their duties and, to ensure it is available
during inspection by authorised officers.
Location
49. The Licensing Authority is aware that whilst ‘need’ or ‘demand’ issues cannot
be considered with regard to the location of premises, consideration in terms of
the licensing objectives are relevant to its decision making.
50. The Licensing Authority will pay particular attention to the protection of children
and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as
issues of crime and disorder.
51. The Authority will consider with particular care any application that is made for
a premises that are:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Close to educational establishments including nurseries, schools, colleges
and universities
Situated in an area of high crime
Situated in an area of deprivation
Close to services assisting vulnerable people
Close to services who are in whole or part aimed at children or young
people, including Libraries, Youth Centres, Leisure facilities
Close to existing premises offering pawn broking, instant / pay-day loans
or similar services

When determining whether two or more premises are considered ‘close’, the
Authority will assess each on its own merits, including but not exclusively, the
distance between them, the ease of access between premises and the number
of such premises in the locality.
52. It should be noted that this or any such policy does not preclude any application
being made and each application will be decided on its merits, with the onus
upon the applicant to show how any concerns can be overcome.
Local Area Profile
53. The Licensing Authority has published a Local Area Profile highlighting the key
characteristics for consideration by operators when completing Risk
Assessments.
54. The Local Area Profile is published as a separate document to this Policy and
will be updated from time to time as new data becomes available. Operators
are still expected to have consideration to the Local Area Profile in the same
way as might be if it formed part of this policy.
Planning
55. In accordance with Section 210 of the Gambling Act 2005 and Gambling
Commission Guidance, the Licensing Authority, when dealing with a premises
licence application, will not take into account whether those buildings have or
Page | 13

Agenda Item 6

Page 78

comply with the necessary planning or building consents. The Authority
recognises that these matters are dealt with under relevant planning control
and building regulation powers, and cannot form part of the consideration for
the premises licence.
56. Equally the grant of a gambling premises licence does not prejudice or prevent
any action that may be appropriate under the law relating to planning or
building.
57. However in the spirit of transparency, the Authority will bring to the attention of
any relevant department any discrepancy between licence applications and
planning consent that are noted during the determination process.
Duplication with other regulatory regimes
58. The Licensing Authority shall seek to avoid any duplication with other statutory
regulatory regimes where possible although it will listen to, and consider
carefully, any concerns about conditions which are not able to be met by a
licence holder due to other regulatory restrictions, should such a situation arise.
59. Regulatory regimes associated with fire safety, health and safety, planning and
building control do not form part of the consideration for the premises licence,
and applicants and licence holders are reminded of the separate obligations in
respect of these areas.
Licensing objectives
60. Premises licences granted must be consistent with the licensing objectives.
With regard to these objectives, the Licensing Authority has considered the
Gambling Commission’s Guidance and make the following statements of
principles.
61. Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime
(a) The Licensing Authority is aware that the Gambling Commission takes a
leading role in preventing gambling from being a source of crime.
(b) Guidance does however envisage that licensing authorities should pay
attention to the proposed location of gambling premises in terms of this
licensing objective.
(c) Where an area has known high levels of organised crime the Licensing
Authority will consider carefully whether gambling premises are suitable to
be located there and whether imposition of conditions may be appropriate.
The Authority is aware of the distinction between disorder and nuisance and
recognise that disorder is intended to mean activity that is more than just
nuisance. When determining contested applications the Authority will consider
factors including whether police assistance was required and how threatening
the behaviour was to those who could see it.
Page | 14

Page 79

Agenda Item 6

62. Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way
(a) The Licensing Authority notes that the Gambling Commission generally
does not expect licensing authorities to be concerned with ensuring that
gambling is conducted in a fair and open way and recognises this will be
addressed via operating and personal licences. The Authority will however
refer any concerns or suspicions arising in connection with this objective to
the Gambling Commission.
63. Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling
Children
(a) The Licensing Authority will consider whether specific measures are
required at particular premises with regard to this licensing objective,
including but not exclusively entrance controls, supervision levels, location
of facilities and segregation of areas.
(b) The Licensing Authority is also aware, and will take into consideration, the
Gambling Commission Code of Practice in relation to this licensing
objective.
Vulnerable persons
(c) The Authority recognises that the Gambling Commission does not seek to
offer a definition of ‘vulnerable persons’ but for regulatory purposes
assumes that this group includes people who gamble more than they want
to, people who gamble beyond their means, and people who may not be
able to make informed or balanced decisions about gambling due to a
mental impairment, alcohol or drugs.
(d) The Licensing Authority will consider this licensing objective on a case by
case basis with reference to Responsible Authorities or other sources of
information as appropriate.
Conditions
64. Any conditions to be attached to licences, whether mandatory, default or
attached by the Licensing Authority will be necessary for the promotion of the
Licensing Objectives. Conditions will be proportionate and:
▪ Relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling
facility;
▪ Directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for
▪ Fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises; and
▪ Reasonable in all other respects.
65. Decisions upon the need for, and the content of, individual conditions will be
made on a case by case basis, although there will be a number of measures
the Licensing Authority will consider utilising should there be a perceived need.
Attention is drawn to the specific comments made for some of the licence types
below.
Page | 15

Agenda Item 6

Page 80

66. The Licensing Authority expects applicants, via their risk assessment or
otherwise, to offer suggestions as to steps needed to ensure the licensing
objectives can be met effectively.
67.

This Authority also considers specific measures may be required for buildings
which are subject to multiple premises licences including the supervision of
entrances, segregation of gambling from non-gambling areas (particularly
those frequented by children) and the supervision of gaming machines in nongambling specific premises.

68.

The Licensing Authority will seek to ensure in respect of the provision of
Gaming Machines, and specifically where category C or above machines are
on offer in premises to which children are admitted:
● All such machines are located in an area of the premises which is
separated from the remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is
effective to prevent access other than through a designated entrance;
● Only adults are admitted to the area where these machines are located
● Access to the area where the machines are located is supervised;
● The area where these machines are located is arranged so that it can be
observed by the staff or the licence holder; and
● At the entrance to and inside any such areas there are prominently
displayed notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons
under 18.

69. These considerations will apply to all relevant premises including buildings
where multiple premises licences are applicable. The Licensing Authority will
consider the impact upon the Licensing Objectives and the need to ensure that
entrances to each type of premises are distinct, and that children are excluded
by physical barriers / obstructions wherever possible from gambling areas
where they are not permitted to enter.
70. The Licensing Authority recognises it cannot attach conditions which:
● make it impossible to comply with any Operating Licence condition;
● relate to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of operation;
● provide that membership of a club or body be required (the Gambling Act
2005 specifically removes the membership requirement for casino and
bingo clubs and prevents it from being reinstated); and
● in relation to stakes, fees, winnings or prizes.
Door Supervisors
71. Where the Licensing Authority is concerned that a premises may attract
disorder or be subject to attempts at unauthorised access (for example by
children and young person’s) then it may require that the entrances to the
premises are controlled by a door supervisor, and is entitled to impose a
condition on a premises licence to this effect.
72. Where it is decided that supervision of entrances/machines is appropriate for
particular cases, a consideration of whether these need to be Security Industry
Authority licensed or not will be necessary. It will not be automatically assumed
Page | 16

Page 81

Agenda Item 6

that they need to be licensed, as the statutory requirements for different types
of premises vary.
Adult Gaming Centres
73. The Licensing Authority will have specific regard to the need to protect children
and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will
expect the applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient
measures to, for example, ensure that those under 18 years of age do not have
access to the premises.
74. This licensing authority may consider the following or other necessary
measures to meet the licensing objectives in such premises:
● Age verification schemes
● CCTV provision, including location and quality
● Supervision of entrances / machine areas
● Physical separation of areas
● Location of entry
● Notices and signage
● Specific opening hours
● Self-exclusion schemes
● Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such
as GamCare.
75. This list is neither mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of
example measures.
Family Entertainment Centres (Licensed)
76. The Licensing Authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect
children and vulnerable persons from harm or from being exploited by gambling
and will expect the applicant to satisfy the authority, for example, that there will
be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to
the adult only gaming machine areas.
77. This licensing authority may consider measures to meet the licensing objectives
such as:
● Age verification schemes
● CCTV provision, including location and quality
● Supervision of entrances / machine areas
● Physical separation of areas
● Location of entry points
● Notices / signage
● Specific opening hours
● Self-exclusion schemes
● Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such
as GamCare.
● Measures / training for staff on how to deal with suspected truant school
children on the premises
78. This list is neither mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of
example measures.
Page | 17

Agenda Item 6

Page 82

79. This licensing authority will refer to the Gambling Commission’s publications for
any recommended conditions that may apply to the respective Operating
Licences which relate to the way in which the area containing the category C
machines should be delineated.
Casinos

80. There are currently no casinos operating within the Borough.
81. No resolution to prohibit casinos in the Borough has been made at present,
however the Council reserves the right to review this situation and may, at
some time in the future, resolve not to permit casinos.

82. Should the Council choose to make such a resolution, this will be a resolution
of Full Council following considered debate and this policy document will be
updated to reflect any such changes.
Bingo premises
83. The Licensing Authority notes Gambling Commission’s Guidance, particularly
on the concept of ‘primary activity’, and will satisfy itself that bingo can be
played in any bingo premises for which a premises licence is issued.
84. This will, in particular, be a relevant consideration where the operator of an
existing bingo premises seeks to vary their licence to exclude an area of the
existing premises from its ambit in order to apply for a new premises licence (or
multiple licences) for that or those excluded areas.
85. The Licensing Authority will have specific regard to the need to protect children
and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will
expect the applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient
measures to, for example, ensure that those under 18 years of age do not have
access to the premises.
86. The Licensing Authority is aware of unusual circumstances in which the splitting
of a pre-existing premises into two (or more) adjacent premises might be
permitted. However, it notes that it is not permissible to locate the maximum
number of permitted gaming machines in one of the resulting premises and will
ensure where premises are so split that the gaming machine entitlement
applies to each ‘premises’ independently.
87. The Authority will ensure that where category B or C machines are made
available for use in premises licensed for the playing of Bingo, they are so
located so as to be separated from areas where children and young people are
permitted.
Betting premises – Betting machines
88. The Licensing Authority will take into account the Gambling Commission's
guidance on betting machines, Category B2 gaming machines, also known as
Page | 18

Page 83

Agenda Item 6

fixed odds betting terminals (FOBT) and, in particular, advice on ‘primary
gambling activity’ when considering applications for Betting premises.
89. The Licensing Authority will have specific regard to the need to protect children
and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will
expect the applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient
measures to, for example, ensure that those under 18 years of age do not have
access to the premises.
90. When doing so, consideration will specifically be given to the size of the
premises, the number of counter positions available for person-to-person
transactions and the ability of staff to monitor the use of gaming machines /
FOBT’s. It is expected that operators will have regard to these matters in their
Risk Assessment. .
Travelling Fairs
91. The Licensing Authority is responsible for deciding whether, where category D
machines and / or equal chance prize gaming without a permit is to be made
available for use that the statutory requirement that facilities for gambling
amount to no more than an ancillary amusement at the fair is met.
92. The Authority will also consider whether the applicant falls within the statutory
definition of a travelling fair, and notes that the 27-day statutory maximum
period during which land may be used as a fair applies on a per calendar year
basis and applies to the piece of land on which the fairs are held, regardless of
whether it is the same or different travelling fairs occupying the land.
93. The Licensing Authority will work with its neighbouring authorities to ensure that
land which crosses our boundaries is monitored so that the statutory limits are
not exceeded.
Provisional Statements
94. Potential operators may wish to apply to this authority for a Provisional
Statement before entering into a contract to buy or lease property or land. This
process allows prospective operators to judge whether a development is worth
taking forward in light of the need to obtain a premises licence.
95. Section 204 of the Gambling Act 2005 provides for a person to make an
application to the licensing authority for a provisional statement in respect of
premises that they:
● Expect to be constructed;
● Expect to be altered; or
● Expect to acquire a right to occupy.
96. The process for considering an application for a provisional statement is the
same as that for a premises licence however the applicant does not have to
hold or have applied for an operating licence from the Gambling Commission
(except in the case of a track) and they do not have to have a right to occupy
the premises in respect of which their provisional application is made.
Page | 19

Agenda Item 6

Page 84

97. The holder of a provisional statement may then apply for a premises licence
once the premises are constructed, altered or acquired and they have a right of
occupancy and the Licensing Authority recognises that it will be constrained in
the matters it can consider when determining a subsequent premises licence
application. The Authority will not take into account any (further)
representations from Responsible Authorities or interested parties unless they
concern matters which could not have been addressed at the provisional
statement stage or they reflect a change in the applicant’s circumstances.
98. In addition, the authority may refuse the premises licence (or grant it on terms
different to those attached to the provisional statement) only by reference to
matters:
▪ Which could not have been raised by objectors at the provisional
statement stage;
▪ Which in the authority’s opinion reflect a change in the operator’s
circumstances; or
▪ Where the premise has not been constructed in accordance with the plan
submitted with the application. This must be a substantial change to the
plan and the Licensing Authority notes that it can discuss any concerns it
has with the applicant before making a decision.
Reviews
99. Requests for a review of a premises licence can be made by interested parties
or responsible authorities however it is for the Licensing Authority to decide
whether the review is to be carried-out. When making such a determination
whether to Review a licence, the Authority will do so on the basis of whether
the request is relevant to the matters listed below;
▪ in accordance with any relevant Code of Practice issued by the Gambling
Commission
▪ in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling
Commission;
▪ reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives;
▪ in accordance with the authority’s Licensing Policy;
▪ is frivolous, vexatious, or whether it will certainly not cause the Authority to
wish to alter, revoke or suspend the licence
▪ whether it is substantially the same as previous representations or
requests for review
100. The Licensing Authority recognises that – as a Responsible Authority - it is
entitled to initiate a review of a particular premises licence, or a particular class
of premises licence, on the basis of any reason which it thinks is appropriate.
101. Once a valid application for a review has been received by the licensing
authority, representations can be made by Responsible Authorities and
interested parties during a 28 day period. This period begins 7 days after the
application was received by the licensing authority, who will publish notice of
the application within 7 days of receipt.
102. The licensing authority must carry out the review as soon as possible after the
28 day period for making representations has passed. In absence of any
statutory timescale, and in the interests of expediency, the Authority will aim to
Page | 20

Page 85

Agenda Item 6

commence the Review no later than one calendar month after the period for
making representations ends and will provide all parties with at least 10 working
days’ notice of the Review hearing.
103. The purpose of the review will be to determine whether the Licensing Authority
should take any action in relation to the licence. If action is justified, the options
open to the licensing authority are:▪
▪
▪
▪

Add, remove or amend a licence condition imposed by the licensing
authority;
Exclude a default condition imposed by the Secretary of State or Scottish
Ministers (e.g. opening hours) or remove or amend such an exclusion;
Suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding three months;
and
Revoke the premises licence.

104. In determining what action, if any, should be taken following a review, the
Licensing Authority will have regard to the principles set out in section 153 of
the Gambling Act, as well as any relevant representations.
105. The Authority is keen to deter people from applying for licences in a speculative
manner without intending to use them, and the Authority reserves the right to
apply for a review on the grounds that a premises licence holder has not
provided facilities for gambling at the premises. Once the review has been
completed, the licensing authority will normally notify its decision within 5
working days to:
▪ The licence holder
▪ The applicant for review
▪ The Gambling Commission
▪ Any person who made representations
▪ The Chief Officer of Police; and
▪ Her Majesty’s Commissioners for Revenue and Customs

Page | 21

Agenda Item 6

Page 86

PART C – PERMITS, TEMPORARY & OCCASIONAL USE NOTICES
Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre [FEC] gaming machine permits
106. Where a premises does not hold a premises licence but wishes to provide
gaming machines, it may apply to the Licensing Authority for a permit. The
Authority requires that a plan showing the layout of the premises, with locations
of gaming machines highlighted will accompany the application.
107. The Licensing Authority expects applicants to show that there are policies and
procedures in place to protect children from harm. Harm in this context is not
limited to harm from gambling but includes wider child protection
considerations.
108. The efficiency of such policies and procedures will each be considered on their
merits, however, acceptable policies are likely to include:
▪
▪

Measures and training for staff regarding suspected truant school children
on the premises,
Measures and training for staff on dealing with unsupervised and very
young children being on the premises, or children causing perceived
problems on /around the premises.

109. The Licensing Authority also expects applicants to demonstrate a full
understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling that are
permissible in unlicensed FECs and takes steps to ensure that staff working in
the premises are trained and have a full understanding of these.
110. Premises in respect of which a FEC Permit shall be granted must be wholly or
mainly used for making gaming machines available for use.
111. The Licensing Authority will consult the Chief Officer of Police on all such
applications. The Authority recognises it is unable to attach conditions to a FEC
permit, however it may provide advice to operators on measures of good
practice either at the time of grant or at some other time.
Alcohol Licensed premises - gaming machine permits
Automatic entitlement: 2 machines
112. The Gambling Act 2005 permits premises licensed to sell alcohol for
consumption on the premises, and which have a bar, to provide 2 gaming
machines, of categories C and / or D. Any premises wishing to do so must
notify the licensing authority, and authorisation is granted automatically.
113. The Authority is empowered to remove the authorisation in respect of any
particular premises if:
▪ Provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of
the licensing objectives;
▪ Gaming has taken place on the premises in breach of a condition of section
282 of the Gambling Act 2005 (i.e. where no written notice has been
Page | 22

Page 87

▪

Agenda Item 6

provided to the licensing authority, where any fee is outstanding and where
any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission about
the location and operation of the machine has not been complied with);The
premises are mainly being used for gaming; or
An offence under the Gambling Act 2005 has been committed on the
premises.

Permit: 3 or more machines
114. Any premises wishing to provide more than 2 machines requires a permit. The
Licensing Authority will consider an application based upon the licensing
objectives and any guidance issued by the Gambling Commission and any
other matters it believes relevant in the circumstances.
115. The Licensing Authority considers that, whilst other matters it takes into
consideration will be decided on a case by case basis, it expects applicants to
have regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable persons from
harmed or being exploited by gambling. The Authority will not grant such
permits where it considers there are insufficient measures to ensure that under
18 year olds do not have access to the gaming machines.
116. Measures that may deem to satisfy the Licensing Authority include;
▪ The gaming machines being located in sight of the bar or in the sight of
staff who are able to monitor their use and ensure machines are not being
used by those under 18
▪ Appropriate notices and signage
▪ In relation to protection of vulnerable persons, applicants may wish to
consider the provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for
organisations such as GamCare
117. The Licensing Authority recognises it is able to grant any permit with a smaller
number of machines, or a different category of machines, than that applied for
but that it cannot attach conditions to any such permit.
118. The holder of a permit must comply with any Code of Practice issued by the
Gambling Commission about the location and operation of the machine.
Prize Gaming Permits
119. The Licensing Authority will require applicants for Prize Gaming Permits to
demonstrate;
▪ That they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in
Regulations;
▪ That the gaming to be offered is within the law
▪ Clear policies are in place outlining the steps to be taken to protect children
from harm.
120. In making its decision on an application for a permit the Licensing Authority
recognises that it does not need to (but is entitled to) have regard to the
licensing objectives. The Authority but will have regard to any Gambling
Commission guidance.
Page | 23

Agenda Item 6

Page 88

121. It should be noted that there are conditions in the Gambling Act 2005 that the
permit holder must comply with, and applicants are strongly recommended to
familiarise themselves with those. The Authority cannot attach any other
conditions to any granted permit.
Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits
122. Members Clubs and Miners’ Welfare Institutes (but not Commercial Clubs) may
apply for a Club Gaming Permit or a Club Gaming machines permit to enables
the provision of gaming machines (up to 3 machines of categories B3A, B3, C
or D), equal chance gaming and games of chance as set out in legislation.
123. The Authority will ensure when considering permit applications that the
applicant Members club has at least 25 members and are established and
conducted ’wholly or mainly’ for purposes other than gaming, unless the
gaming is permitted by separate regulations.
124. In such respects, the Authority recognises that regulations permit the playing of
bridge and whist without a permit.
125. A members’ club seeking to benefit from a permit must be permanent in nature,
not established to make commercial profit, and controlled by its members
equally.
126. The Licensing Authority recognises that it may only refuse an application on the
grounds that:
▪ The applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or commercial
club and therefore is not entitled to receive the type of permit for which it
has applied;
▪ The applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or
young people;
▪ An offence under the Gambling Act 2005 or a breach of a permit has been
committed by the applicant while providing gaming facilities;
▪ A permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten
years; or
▪ An objection has been lodged by the Gambling Commission or the Police.
127. The grounds on which the Licensing Authority may refuse an application made
under the “Fast track” procedure (by Clubs holding a Club Premises Certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003) are:
▪
▪
▪

That the club is established primarily for gaming, other than gaming
prescribed under schedule 12;
That in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities
for other gaming; or
That a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the applicant in
the last ten years has been cancelled.

Temporary Use Notices
128. Temporary Use Notices allow the use of premises for gambling where there is
no premises licence but where a gambling operator wishes to use the premises
Page | 24

Page 89

Agenda Item 6

temporarily for providing facilities for gambling. Premises which might be
suitable for a Temporary Use Notice, according to guidance, would include
hotels, conference centres and sporting venues.
129. The licensing authority will only grant a Temporary Use Notice to a person or
company holding a relevant Operators Licence
130. The Authority will object or reject notices where it appears that their effect
would be to permit regular gambling in a place that could be described as one
set of premises (in line with recommendations in the Gambling Commission’s
Guidance to Licensing Authorities).
Occasional Use Notices
131. The Licensing Authority has very little discretion as regards these notices aside
from ensuring that the statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not
exceeded.
132. The Licensing Authority will however consider the definition of a ‘track’ and
whether the applicant is permitted to avail him/herself of the notice

Page | 25

Agenda Item 6

Page 90

Part D – LOTTERIES
133. The Licensing Authority is responsible for the registration of small scale society
lotteries where the principal office is located within the borough.
134. Such lotteries can only be promoted for charitable purposes, participation in or
supporting sport, cultural activities or for other non-commercial purposes other
than for private gain.
135. Applicants are reminded that their application may be refused if:
▪
▪
▪

The applicant is not a non-commercial society;
A person connected with the lottery promotion has been convicted of a
relevant offence;
False or misleading information is provided.

136. The Authority will, where necessary, invite applicants to provide evidence to
support their application including articles of association, minutes of Annual
General Meetings or Committee Meetings or other such documents that may
assist the Authority in determining if a ground for refusal exists.
137. In considering whether to refuse an application or revoke a registration the
Licensing Authority will first give an opportunity to the society to make
representations.
138. The providers of small society lotteries are required to submit a formal return to
the Authority following each draw. The Authority may investigate providers of
small society lotteries in the event of a late or missing statutory return, in the
event of evidence or report of tickets being sold to children, any suspected
misappropriation of funds or where it identifies or receives reports of lotteries
being held without or in breach of a registration.

Page | 26

Page 91

Agenda Item 6

GLOSSARY – LICENCES, PERMITS AND NOTICES
Premises licence
Authorises the provision of facilities for gambling on premises for casinos, bingo, betting
including tracks, adult gaming centres and family entertainment centres. The premises
licence may also include details of conditions. These licenses will be valid for the life of
the premises, subject to any review that may be triggered and lapse in certain
circumstances, with no annual renewal required, although there is an annual fee. These
licences are transferable to someone else holding a valid operating licence.
Operating licence
Authorises individuals or companies to provide facilities for certain types of remote or
non-remote gambling. These licences are issued by the Gambling Commission and
generally cover the principle commercial forms of gambling operation. A single licence
cannot authorise both remote and non-remote activities; separate operating licences are
needed for this. Conditions may be attached.
Personal licence
Except for small scale operations, each operating licence, at least one person who holds
a specified management office must hold a personal licence. These licences are issued
by the Gambling Commission with the aim of ensuring that individuals who control
facilities for gambling or are able to influence the outcome of gambling are suitable to
carry out those functions. These licences are not transferable and cannot be held by
companies but companies are likely to want their key staff to hold a personal licence.
Unlicensed family entertainment centre gaming machine permits
These allow the use of category ‘D’ gaming machines in these premises to a person
who occupies or plans to occupy the premises to be used as an unlicensed family
entertainment centre. An application for this permit cannot be made where a premises
licence is in effect on the same premises.
Club gaming permits and club machine permits
Club gaming permits allow members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes [but not a
commercial club] to provide gaming machines and equal chance gaming and games of
chance. These clubs and commercial clubs may apply for a club machine permit which
allows the holder to have up to 3 gaming machines of category ‘B’, ‘C’ or ‘D’.
Alcohol licensed premises gaming machine permits
The Licensing Authority can issue such permits for any number of category ‘C’ or ‘D’
machines in licensed premises. There is an automatic entitlement for alcohol on-licence
holders to make available 2 gaming machines of category ‘C’ or ‘D’ for use in alcohol
licensed premises.
Prize gaming permits
This permit allows the provision of facilities for gaming with prizes on specified premises.
“Prize gaming” refers to gaming where the nature and size of the prize is not determined
by the number of people playing or the amount paid for or raised by the gaming.
Temporary use notices
These notices authorise the person or company holding a relevant operating licence to
use the premises temporarily for providing facilities for gambling where there is no
premises licence. Such premises may include hotels, conference centres and sporting
venues.
Occasional use notices
Where there is betting on a track on up to eight days in a calendar year, betting may be
permitted by an occasional use notice without the need for a premises licence. A track
includes a horse race course, dog track and temporary tracks for races or sporting
events.

Page | 27

Page 92

Agenda Item 6

Appendix A
Table of delegations of licensing functions
MATTER TO BE DEALT
WITH
Three year licensing policy

FULL
COUNCIL
X

Policy not to permit casinos

X

Fee Setting – when
appropriate
Application for premises
licences
Application for a variation to
a licence
Application for a transfer of a
licence
Application for a provisional
statement
Application to review of a
premises licence
Application for a club
gaming/club machine permits
Cancellation of club
gaming/club machine permits
Applications for other
permits, in particular gaming
machines in alcohol
premises, and prize gaming
Cancellation of licensed
premises gaming machine
permits
Consideration of temporary
use notice
Decision to give a counter
notice to a temporary use
notice
Decision on whether a
representation is irrelevant
frivolous vexatious or
substantially the same as
previous representations etc.
Representation by Licensing
Authority as Responsible
Authority

COMMITTEE

SUB-COMMITTEE

OFFICERS

X
Where representations
have been received and
not withdrawn
Where representations
have been received and
not withdrawn
Where representations
have been received from
the Commission
Where representations
have been received and
not withdrawn
X

Where no representations
received/representations
have been withdrawn
Where no representations
received/representations
have been withdrawn
Where no representations
received from the
Commission.
Where no representations
received/representations
have been withdrawn

Where representations
have been received and
not withdrawn
X

Where no representations
received/representations
have been withdrawn

Where representations
have been received and
not withdrawn

Where no representations
received/representations
have been withdrawn
X

X
X

X

X

Page | 28

Page 93

Agenda Item 6

Appendix B

DRAFT

Gambling Act 2005
Local Area Profile
This document accompanies the
Statement of Policy and Principles
2019 - 2022

This document was published on:
This document was updated on:

Agenda Item 6

Page 94

Contents
Page
Map 1: Borough map
Map 2: Location of licensed venues
Map 3: Location of drug and alcohol services
Map 4: Education facilities and children’s centres
Map 5: Income domain with gambling premises
Map 6: Employment domain with gambling premises

Page | 2

Page 95

Agenda Item 6

Map 1: Borough map

Page | 3

Agenda Item 6

Page 96

Map 2: Location of licensed venues (Correct on 31 May 2018)

Page | 4

Page 97

Agenda Item 6

Map 3: Location of drug and alcohol services

Page | 5

Agenda Item 6

Page 98

Map 4: Education facilities and children’s centres (Draft one)

Page | 6

Page 99

Agenda Item 6

Map 5: Income Domain with Gambling Premises

Page | 7

Agenda Item 6

Page 100

Map 6: Employment Domain with Gambling Premises

Page | 8

Page 101

Agenda Item 6

Agenda Item 6

Page 102

Page 103

Agenda Item 6

Agenda Item 6

Page 104

Page 105

Agenda Item 6

Agenda Item 6

Page 106

Page 107

Agenda Item 6

Agenda Item 6

Page 108

Page 109

Agenda Item 6

Agenda Item 6

Page 110

Page 111

Agenda Item 7

Report to:

Licensing Committee

Report title:

Animal Welfare - Changes to Licensing Legistation

Report from:

Mary Morrissey - Strategic Director, Environment, Housing &
Regeneration

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:

Councillor Muhammad Sadiq

Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

David Kingstone, Team Leader Licensing & Environmental
Compliance, 020 8770 5162 / 0734 2055 767
Nick Cloke, Licensing Lead Officer, 020 8770 5622 / 020 8547 5600
ext. 4366

Corporate Plan
Priorities:
Open/Exempt:

●
●

Date:

24 September 2018

Making Informed Choices
Keeping People Safe

Open

Signed:

Date:

11 September 2018

1.

Summary

1.1

This report introduces new legislation coming into effect in October 2018 which changes the
licences required by those commercially involved in the keeping of animals. The report informs
members of the key changes brought about by the legislation, sets out the application process
and introduces the concept of a policy document to set out the Authorities approach to licensing.

2.

Recommendations
The Licensing Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Note the implementation, with effect from 1st October 2018, of the Animal Welfare (Licensing of
Activities Involving Animals) Regulations 2018.

2.2

Agree that an Animal Activity Licensing Policy be developed and brought to Committee in
December.

Agenda Item 7

Page 112

2.3

Agree that applications being considered for refusal, and licences being considered for
revocation, are brought before Committee (or a sub-committee thereof) for determination.

3.

Background

3.1

The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018 hereafter referred to as ‘the Regulations’ - come into force on 1st October 2018 and introduce a
range of changes to the way in which certain activities involving animals are licensed.

3.2

The Regulations are made under the Animal Welfare Act 2006 and repeal a number of other
pieces of legislation under which licences have been issued, in some circumstances for many
years.

3.3

It is important to note that the Regulations, and thus the licensing regime, applies only to
vertebrate animals (excluding humans) meaning that the regulations do not apply to
invertebrates and we are unable to consider those in terms of licensing.

3.4

The Regulations provide for licensing of those involved in offering or running a business
involved in one or more of the five animal activities:
● Selling animals as pets
● Providing, or arranging for the provision of, boarding for dogs and cats (including
kennels, catteries, dog day care and home boarding)
● Hiring out horses
● Breeding of dogs
● Keeping or training animals for exhibition.

3.5

Premises offering these activities are required to apply for an Animal Activities Licence which
can be used to offer more than one activity - i.e a person can be licensed for breeding of dogs
and selling of pet animals on one licence, rather than needing two. There are standard
conditions for each activity, included within the Regulations and there is no longer scope for a
Local Authority to apply it’s own conditions to licences.

3.6

Transitional provisions allow most existing licences to continue until their natural expiry date,
which as many types of legislation currently regulated operate on the basis of a licence for a
calendar year, means many will expire at the end of December and must be replaced by the
new type of licence.

3.7

Animal Activity Licences will be issued from 1 October for the activities set out below. Licences
are subject to a statutory risk assessment process which will provide a ‘star’ rating for
businesses, and this will determine the length of the licence. Licences will generally last
between 1 and 3 years.

3.8

Licences - with the exception of dog breeding - are required by anyone providing activities as a
business or for commercial reasons, what is being called the ‘business test’. The Regulations
set out the circumstances which a local authority may take into account in determining whether
an activity is being carried on in the course of a business, which include whether the operator

Page 113

Agenda Item 7

carries on the activity with a view to making a profit or earns any commission or fee from the
activity. Other tests can be applied including HMRC guidance, including the trading income
allowance.
Selling Animals as Pets
3.9

This replaces the Pet Animals Act 1951 and widens the scope of businesses selling, or keeping
animals intending to be sold, that become licensable to include sales from the internet, sales
from home and wholesalers that supply pet shops.

3.10 The regulations introduce a new definition of ‘pet’, which states ‘an animal mainly or
permanently, or intended to be mainly or permanently, kept by a person for personal interest,
companionship, ornamental purposes, or any combination of these’.
3.11 Key changes include a requirement to keep a register of all animals kept and sold and an
improvement in the guidance to local authority inspectors on stocking densities and standards
required in premises.
3.12 In Sutton there are 8 pet shops currently licensed, however there may be businesses operating
that now require licences and officers will be working to identify those and bring to their attention
the new requirements.
Animal Boarding
3.13 Four different types of activity that constitute boarding are included in the new licensable
activity, set out in the legislation as:
●
Providing boarding for cats
●
Boarding in kennels for dogs
●
Home boarding for dogs
●
Providing day care for dogs.
3.14 Whilst the new regime will provide little in the way of any change for kennels and catteries, there
are now statutory controls on home boarding and dog day care that didn’t previously exist.
3.15 Key changes for home boarding include conditions that restrict the number of dogs that can be
home boarded - there must be sufficient space to provide an individual sleeping area for each
dog with the ability to keep each dog in a physically separate room if required. Restrictions
around staffing and children living in the home are also being implemented.
3.16 Dog day care licensing is being recognised as a licensed activity for the first time, and comes
with it’s own set of conditions designed to ensure that dogs welfare needs are met.
3.17 Whilst there are 14 boarding establishments in Sutton, the number of dog day care providers is
unknown however officers are working to identify those that may now fall within scope of the
new Regulations and officers will be working with those to ensure that they comply with the new
requirements.

Agenda Item 7

Page 114

Hiring out Horses
3.18 This activity replaces the Riding Establishments Act 1964 and requires anyone hiring out horses
for riding or instruction in riding to be licensed. This includes riding schools but also those that
hire out horses for trekking, loan horses, offer pony parties (where the ponies are ridden),
provide hunter hirelings, polo/polocrosse instruction and pony hire, pony and donkey rides.
3.19 The incorporation of this activity isn’t likely to bring any businesses that aren’t already licensed
within scope in Sutton, and there is just one premises in Sutton currently licensed.
3.20 Inspections of horses must be carried out every year by a registered veterinary surgeon
appointed by the Council. Officers currently have a contract with the City of London Animal
Welfare Service who have qualified vets in their employ.
Breeding of Dogs
3.21 This area of activity is being significantly tightened by the new Regulations and more individuals
who happen to be breeding dogs recreationally are set to come into scope of licensing. Dog
breeding is not subject to the business test set out above.
3.22 Anyone breeding dogs and advertising a business of selling them now requires a licence, even
if only one litter is sold in a year. Individuals who breed and sell 3 litters or more in a 12 month
period, but who are not doing so as a business, also require licensing - noting that the litters can
be from separate breeding bitches.
3.23 Strict controls are applied to dog breeding through the new standard conditions, which include
specific requirements for advertising and minimum staffing ratios for example.
Keeping or Training Animals for Exhibition
3.24 Replacing the oldest piece of legislation affected by this change, the Performing Animals Act
1925, this new activity widens the scope of animals for which a licence is required and provides
for welfare considerations that weren’t included within the previous legislation.
3.25 Businesses in scope include those that keep animals for exhibition, either for entertainment or
educational purposes so incorporates mobile animal exhibits. Newly requiring a licence are
those businesses that train animals for exhibition, even if the person training the animals doesn’t
own or keep them.
3.26 In Sutton there are three licence holders currently, however there may be other that previously
didn’t need a performing animals licence that will now require one under these regulations.

Page 115

4.

Agenda Item 7

Issues
Processing Applications

4.1

In considering applications made under these Regulations, the Council is required to have
regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
(Defra).

4.2

Procedural guidance notes have been published by Defra setting out the process of application
and how Local Authorities should determine applications, and they set out specific
considerations including a fit and proper test of the applicant / licence holder and their conduct.

4.3

An inspection must be conducted by a suitably qualified inspector of any premises subject to an
application, whether an application for a new licence, a renewal application or an application to
vary a licence. For the first inspection of a dog breeding establishment, all licence inspections of
riding establishments, a listed veterinarian must also be present.

4.4

The guidance requires that officers carrying out inspections under this legislation hold a level 3
qualification in inspecting and licensing animal activity businesses. Local Authorities have 3
years to train and qualify officers, until then inspections can be conducted by officers who have
at least 1 year experience in inspecting licensable businesses.

4.5

The Regulations and Guidance do not specify whether refusing applications should be an officer
or committee function, however in accordance with the way that other licensing legislation is
applied, we are recommending that applications being considered for refusal are brought to a
committee or sub-committee for determination.

4.6

Members are invited to resolve that applications being considered for refusal be a committee (or
a sub-committee thereof) function.
Enforcement

4.7

Powers contained within the Regulations provide for the Authority to revoke, suspend or vary a
licence depending on the severity of the situation. Variations can be made with or without the
consent of the licence holder.

4.8

Because the Regulations are made under the Animal Welfare Act 2006, Improvement Notices
under section 10 of this Act can also be used to secure compliance with licence conditions, or
for other matters required to ensure animal welfare.

4.9

The legislation does not set out a decision making route for enforcement actions, however all
actions will be taken in accordance with the Council’s enforcement policy and the Regulators
Code.

Agenda Item 7

Page 116

4.10 Given that immediate suspension of a licence may be necessary to protect the welfare of
animals, delegation to suspend licences, make variations to licences and issue Improvement
Notices will remain with the Group Manager, Regulatory Services.
4.11 However, it is intended that for licences where a decision to revoke a licence is being
considered, this will be brought to a Committee or sub-committee for determination.
4.12 Members are invited to resolve that licences being considered for revocation is a committee (or
a sub-committee thereof) function.
5.

Options Considered
Licensing Policy

5.1

Given that there are a number of areas where the legislation and guidance will benefit from
further local clarification, it is recommended that a policy be developed and considered by this
Committee in December. The policy could be used to set out how the Authority deals with
applications, how it determines fit and proper in terms of applicants, what it considers in the
business test and how applications are refused and licences revoked.

5.2

Members are invited to recommend the creation of a policy to be brought to the next meeting for
consideration.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

The legislation sets out that application fees can be set to secure full cost recovery, including
veterinary fees where these are required as part of the inspection process. Fees are approved
by the Environment and Neighbourhoods Committee.
Legal

6.2

The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018
provide a new licensing regime for operators (section 3) for certain licensable activities such as
selling animals as pets, providing or arranging for the provision of boarding for cats or dogs,
hiring out horses, breeding dogs, keeping or training animals for exhibition in the course of
business.

Page 117

7.

Agenda Item 7

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

None

Background documents
Procedural guidance notes for Local Authorities (Defra, July 2018)

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 11 September 2018

Consultation with other officers
Finance

No

Not required

Legal

Yes

Guy Bishop

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

No

N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

